
 
August 6, 2014                                 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
Proclamation for Constitution Week 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on July 1, 2014, Special Meeting held on 
July 1, 2014, Special Workshop meeting held on July 9, 2014 and Regular Workshop held on 
July 23, 2014. 

b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:  
- Voucher Numbers 158883 through 159266 in the amount of $1,064,031.90.  

 Approval of Payroll Check Numbers: 
- Direct Deposit Numbers 31634 through 31920.   
- EFT Numbers 629 through 636.   
- Payroll Check Numbers 97323 through 97387.  

c. Authorize the surplus of two Jacobsen mowers and authorize trade-in to Western Equipment 
& Irrigation Distributors in the amount of $15,000 

d. Appoint Pete Franssen to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee  
e. Refer to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) potential changes in the use of Hotel-

Motel (2%) funds that may be considered by the City.  
f. Approve an Amendment to the Interagency Agreement with Washington State Department of 

Corrections (DOC) (#K9413) 
g. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Clifford Howard to the Planning Commission. 
h. Name the garden area “Teachers Tribute Garden” where an art sculpture created by Rick 

Nash and donated by Wallie Funk is located at Windjammer Park. 
 
 
5. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

a. City Administrator 
b. Mayor 
c. Councilmembers 

 
 

6. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
a.   Resolution 14-24: Amend the Employee Policy Manual to incorporate new State legislation 

requiring local government entities to accommodate up to two (2) unpaid holidays per calen-
dar year for faith-based leave 

 b.   Resolution 14-28: Approve the final location for the new Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 1



 
August 6, 2014                                 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 

c.   Resolution 1430: Local Agency Agreement with Washington State Department of Transporta- 
      tion for the Waterfront Trail/Veteran’s Park Landslide Restoration. 
d. Resolution 14-31: Local Agency Agreement with Washington State Department of Transpor-

tation for the Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk. 
e. Resolution 14-32: Amendment to the Collective Bargaining Agreement with Teamsters Local 

No. 231 for Public Works. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 a.   Public Meeting for Mangat Property Petition for Annexation  
 b.   Public Hearing to receive citizen comment on projected revenues for the 2015-2016 Biennial  
       Budget 

c. Public Hearing on goals for the Oak Harbor Water Use Efficiency Program (WUEP) 
d. Ordinance 1693: Amend OHMC 6.12.080 (1) to allow the sale of beer, wine, and/or  

liquor in conjunction with a concession agreement and/or special event permit at Fort Nugent  
Park 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
9.         NEW BUSINESS 

a. Authorize Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Oak Harbor Elks Lodge No. 
2362 to serve as the Whidbey Marathon Race Director 

b. Authorize Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Cronin Forestry for consult-
ant services regarding potential timber harvesting at Sleeper Road and NE 16th Ave-
nue/Goldie Road 

c. Amend Island County Agreement for Road Maintenance 
d. Second Quarter Financial Report 

 
 
10.       EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a.   Labor Negotiations 
 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 
To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  

notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 
 2



3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

July 1, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon    Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns    Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Councilmember Beth Munns    Accountant Tallie Boyer 
       Harbor Master Chris Sublet 
       Facilities Manager Rich Tyhuis  
       Operations Manager Steve Bebee 
        
          

AGENDA 
 

1. 2015-2016 Budget Goals for the Utility, Street, and Marina Funds 
 
City Administrator Larry Cort opened the Special Workshop meeting to continue the 2015-16 
budget discussion. 
 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen presented the Water and Utilities divisions of Public Work’s 
goals: 
 

- Streets 
- Water 
- Waste Water Treatment Plan  
- Solid Waste 
- Storm Water 

 
The Councilmembers made inquiries of some particular goals presented by Public Works. 
 
Harbor Master Chris Sublet presented the Marina’s goals for 2015-16: 
 

- Continue development and implementation of redevelopment programs 
- Modernizing the Marina for boater’s needs 
- Maintenance of Facilities and Priorities including improvement of customer service. 

 
Councilmembers asked questions about the Marina to Harbor Master Chris Sublet. 
 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 1 
 
 4



Mayor Dudley called a 5 minute recess at 4:15 p.m.  Mayor Dudley reconvened the meeting at 
4:20 p.m. 
 
City Administrator Larry Cort asked the Councilmembers to share their budget goals with staff 
for Oak Harbor for 2015-16. 
 
Councilmember Servatius desires better use of technologies with the City.  He encouraged staff 
to look for areas with immediate savings to benefit tax-payer dollars. 
 
Councilmember Munns would like to solicit our needs to the State Legislature for support. 
 
Councilmember Campbell stated that a safe community is the number one priority and to main-
tain police and fire departments for citizen’s protection. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao stated that Oak Harbor needs economic development and suggested 
hiring a full-time economic coordinator. 
 
Councilmember Almberg stated that the 42-inch outfall and Waste Water Treatment Plant are 
his highest priorities as those are projects which have already been approved.  Besides the 
pending projects, the City must have a strong financial position in order to best serve the citi-
zens.   He also suggested improving our City Parks branding – our park names should reflect 
their purpose.  
 
Councilmember Severns agreed that the City needs to maintain a reliable financial position.  
Public Works needs to focus on maintenance and repair of our streets.  
 
Councilmember Servatius affirmed that we need to focus on effective branding and marketing of 
our City so that it we create a focused destination. 
 
Councilmember Munns requested to implement a plan to increase personnel for the Police and 
Fire Departments as the City grows.  Public safety is paramount. 
 
Councilmember Campbell reminded the Council that new Navy squadrons will be transferred in 
the next few years.  We need to encourage the sailors to move to Oak Harbor.  He suggested 
introducing the Oak Harbor community to the squadrons before they relocate.  
 
Councilmember Almberg spoke on the issue of little ability to widen Highway 20 without destroy-
ing businesses located near the streets.  He stated that we need to begin planning to alleviate 
the problems.  He suggested building roadway segments with roundabouts, or promote in-fill 
development which encourages a more walk-able community, or a combination of both.  
 
Councilmember Severns noted that the City is involved in several city-sponsored events.  The 
more festivals we can promote the better.  He suggested combining an ad hoc committee to in-
crease festivities and associate with others such as the Chamber of Commerce. 
 
Councilmember Servatius agreed with increasing walk-ability in the city and suggested con-
structing an Amphitheater.   
 
Councilmember Munns stated that she wants to ensure that staff has access to necessary   
tools and technologies.  
 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 5



Councilmember Campbell noted that it may be time to have a citizen’s committee to develop a 
20-year vision.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao encourages that the City needs to continue to provide police and fire 
departments the tools and facilities they need.  The City also needs to increase public safety for 
our schools. 
 
Councilmember Almberg would like to see a comprehensive plan for use of the old bank build-
ing and Bayshore Park. 
 
Councilmember Severns added that there may be a need for a Marina Workshop so that the 
Council can better understand its needs and bring in the Marina Advisory Committee as well. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously 
carried. 
 
Dr. Cort scheduled the next budget workshop for Wednesday, August 6, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. at 
City Hall Council Chambers. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 5:03 p.m. 
 
 
          Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 3 
 
 6



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 1, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Tara Hizon    Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns    Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
       Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
       Senior Planner Ethan Spoo 
        
          
Councilmember Munns was absent. 
         

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

Councilmember Jim Campbell gave the invocation, and Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
          
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to amend the Agenda to add item 9.j and pull  
Consent Agenda item 4.d and rename it as 9.k to New Business.  Councilmember 
Hizon seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as amended.   
  Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously.   
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:09 p.m.  
 
No comments, Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 6:09 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 1 
 7



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on June 3, 2014 and the Workshop 
held on June 25, 2014. 

b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers: 
- Voucher Numbers 158563 through 158572 in the amount of $895.32. 
- Voucher Numbers 158573 through 158728 in the amount of $389,410.05. 
- Voucher Numbers 158729 through 158882 in the amount of $859,870.43.  

       Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:  
- Direct Deposit Numbers 31479 through 31633.  
- EFT Numbers 624 through 628.  
- Payroll Check Numbers 97270 through 97322.    

c.   Motion to authorize the Mayor to re-appoint Terry Lacey to the Police Department 
Community Advisory Board for a 4-year term. 

d.   Motion to Approve Finance Advisor Professional Services Agreement. 
e.   Motion to Approve the Emergency Crescent Harbor Outfall Repair. 
f.    Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign the Letter of Intent to participate in the Island     
      County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
g.   Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign an Interlocal Agreement with Whatcom, Skagit   
      and Island County jurisdictions establishing a HOME consortium for 2015-17.  
h.   Motion to Authorize Purchase of a Toro Mower for Public Works. 

 i.    Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign a Lease Agreement with the Opportunity    
                  Council for two (2) City-owned properties. 
 j.    Motion to Appoint Ron Apgar and Michelle Curry to the Lodging Tax Advisory                    
                  Committee and review Committee Membership. 
 k.   Motion to Authorize the Mayor to appoint Clifford Howard to the Planning 
                  Commission. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked to pull 4h; Councilmember Almberg asked to pull CA 4k. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Severns moved to approve Consent Agenda items 4a through 4g, 4i  
  and j, Motion seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  
 
Councilmember Servatius asked about item Consent Agenda item 4h.  Cathy Rosen explained 
the financial disparities on the Agenda bill represents tax included with the principal cost. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda item 4h.  Motion  
    seconded by Councilmember Severns, unanimously approved. 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to reject the appointment of Clifford Howard [consent  
     agenda item 4.k] to the Planning Commission, motion seconded by Councilmember  
     Hizon, unanimously passed. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved that Clifford Howard present his resume at the next  
          meeting.  
 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
The art piece Conical Etude 1, designed by Wallie Funk, will be dedicated to Windjammer Park 
on Thursday, July 3, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 2 
 8



 
A Budget Meeting for the Waste Water Treatment Plant will be held on July 9 at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Council Chambers. 
 
The Capital Project Planning for 2015-2020 including 2015-16 Biennial Budget Workshop will be 
held on Wednesday, August 6 at 3:00 p.m.  The first Council meeting in August will be held on 
Wednesday August 6th rather than Tuesday August 5th to account for National Night Out. 
 
We have received five Request for Qualifications for a Race Director of the Whidbey Island 
Marathon and will have a contract ready for approval at the August 6, 2014 council meeting.  
 
July 4th activities were announced. 
 
Oak Harbor received a Well City award for 2013 and thanked staff and the Wellness Committee 
for their work. 
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley read an award from Washington State Department of Ecology regarding the 
pristine operation of our Waste Water Treatment Plant.  Mayor Dudley thanked Waste Water 
Treatment staff for their hard work. 
 
Development Director Cathy Rosen spoke in support of the Waste Water Treatment Plant and 
staff. 
 
Mayor Dudley read a letter dated June 28, 2014 from an individual thanking the Fire Department 
for providing medical care for a citizen at Applebee’s.  Mayor Dudley thanked the Fire Depart-
ment for their stellar service to the community. 
 
Mayor Dudley thanked City employee Majda M-Carr for the framed photography donated to the 
City Council Chambers. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Paggao commented on the success of the AWC conference. 
 
Councilmember Campbell commented that the AWC conference was a success. 
 
Councilmember Munns spoke in support of the Dungeness crab workshop on Saturday.  Coun-
cilmember Munns reminded the public that this month is Christmas in July at the Whidbey Help 
House.  The individual who donates the most will receive an award at National Night Out on Au-
gust 6, 2014. 
 
Councilmember Severns wished everyone a safe and Happy Fourth of July. 
 
Councilmember Hizon suggested providing notice for commission vacancies to the public.  On 
July 5, 2014 at 7:30 a.m. Councilmember Hizon and members of the community will commence 
a clean-up of the Fourth of July festivities.   
 
Councilmember Servatius spoke in support of the AWC conference.  On July 22, 2014 from 
5:30 – 7:30 p.m., the Oak Harbor Library will host an open house for the community to view and 
comment on the Island County Transportation Plan.   

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 3 
 9



 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to instruct staff to bring forth an amendment to  
      OHMC 6.12.080 to include Fort Nugent Park for the August 6th Meeting, seconded by  
      Councilmember Severns.   
  

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Resolution14-23:  Solid Waste Comprehensive Plan for Island County  
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 6:40 p.m., no comment, closed at 6:40  
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Almberg asked Ms. Rosen questions about costs involved with participation in  
the Island County Waste Management Plan. 
 
Councilmember Paggao inquired about fees recovered by Island County from tipping and  
service fees.   
 
Resolution 14-23: Solid Waste Comprehensive Plan for Island County 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-23 adopting the Solid Waste  
    Comprehensive Plan for Island County, seconded by Councilmember Munns, 
               unanimously carried. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Police Department 2013 Annual Report 
Police Chief Ed Green provided the staff report on the 2013 Police Department Annual Report. 
 
The councilmembers thanked the Police Chief for the Annual Report and for great service in  
the community for 2013. 
 
 
Motion to approve the GC/CM Pre-construction Professional Services Agreement for the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant with Hoffman  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Two of Hoffman staff present. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:16 p.m., no comment, closed at 7:16  
p.m.  
 
Councilmembers Hizon and Severns spoke in support of the selection of Hoffman.  
 
Coucnilmember Almberg asked Hoffman staff how they projected re-construction estimates. 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 4 
 10



Councilmember Munns confirmed that the Waste Water Treatment Plant is operating within  
budget.   
 
Councilmember Servatius thanked Hoffman staff for their work. 
 
Motion to approve the GC/CM Pre-construction Professional Services Agreement for the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant with Hoffman  

 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the GC/CM Pre-construction Professional 
    Services Agreement for the Waste Water Treatment Plant with Hoffman. Motion  
    seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 
 
Councilmember Almberg thanked the Engineering staff for their hard work on this project. 
  
 
Motion to approve the Construction Management Professional Services Agreement Amendment 
No. 1 with KBA Inc. for the 42-Inch Outfall Project 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:30 p.m., no comment, closed at 7:30  
p.m. 
 
Motion to approve the Construction Management Professional Services Agreement  
Amendment No. 1 with KBA for the 42-Inch Outfall Project 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment  

No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. for construction man-
agement services, increasing the previously contracted amount of $8,101.00 by 
$113,399.00 for a total not to exceed contract amount of $121,500.00.  Motion se-
conded by Councilmember Severns, carried unanimously. 

 
  

Motion to approve the Archaeology Professional Services Agreement with ERCI for the 42-Inch 
Outfall Project Amendment No. 2 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:36 p.m., no comment, closed at 7:36  
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Almberg confirmed funds availability in the Public Works Trust fund for this  
Project. 
 
Motion to approve the Archaeology Professional Services Agreement with ERCI for the 
42-Inch Outfall Project 
 
Councilmembers Severns, Almberg, and Munns asked about costs involved in this project.   
 
 
Motion:  Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement  

with Equinox Research and Consulting International for archaeological services related 
to the 42” Stormwater Outfall at Windjammer Park, increasing the previously contract-

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 5 
 11



ed amount of $16,345.20 by increasing it to $232,387.31 plus a 20% contingency not 
to exceed $298,478.91.  Motion seconded by Campbell, majority approved. 

 
Councilmember Munns opposed. 
Mayor Dudley called a 5 minutes recess at 7:51 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Hizon was excused at 7:52 p.m.   
 
Mayor Dudley reconvened the Council meeting at 7:56 p.m. 
 
 
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agree-
ment with Gray & Osborne for Construction Engineering Services related to the North Reservoir 
Project  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:00 p.m., no comment, closed at 8:00  
p.m. 
 
Councilmembers Almberg and Severns spoke on financial concerns regarding Amendment No.  
1. 
 
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Gray & Osborne for Construction Engineering Services related to the 
North Reservoir Project  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Severns moved to Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to  

the Professional Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for construction engi-
neering services related to the North Reservoir, increasing the previously contracted 
amount of $24,949.00 by $9,620.00 for a total not to exceed contract amount of 
$34,569.00.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously carried.  

 
 
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agree-
ment with MTC related to the North Reservoir Project 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:30 p.m., no comment, closed at 8:30  
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Severns commented on the details of the report which amounted to the need to 
amend the original contract. 
 
Councilmember Almberg and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked follow-up questions to Mr. Stowell.  
 
Councilmember Campbell, Munns, and Servatius thanked Joe Stowell for the detailed explana-
tion and honesty. 
 
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with MTC related to the North Reservoir Project 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1  

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 6 
 12



to the Professional Services Agreement with MTC, Inc. for services related to the     
North Reservoir Project increasing the previously contracted amount of $73,465.50 by 
$72,995.00 for a total not to exceed contract amount of $146,460.50. Motion second-
ed by Councilmember Severns, unanimously carried. 

 
Motion to Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Nikki Esparza as City Attorney and Approve an 
Employment Agreement with Nikki Esparza 
City Administrator Larry Cort provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:57 p.m.  
 
City Attorney Grant Weed, Police Chief Green and Fire Chief Merrill spoke in support of appoint-
ing Ms. Esparza as City Attorney. 
 
Public Comment period closed at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers Servatius, Munns, Campbell, Paggao, Almberg and Severns spoke in support 
of the appointment of Ms. Esparza.  
 
Motion to Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Nikki Esparza as City Attorney and Ap-
prove an Employment Agreement with Nikki Esparza 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Nikki  

 Esparza as City Attorney and Approve an Employment Agreement with Nikki      
 Esparza, Motion seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously carried. 

 
Motion:   Council Severns moved to authorize Mayor to sign agreement an employment  
                agreement with Nikki Esparza, Motion seconded by Campbell, unanimously carried. 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius made a motion to suspend the council rules and extend the  
               council meeting to 9:25 p.m. 
 
Motion to approve Retainer Agreement for Municipal Legal and Support Services with Weed, 
Graafstra and Benson, Inc. 
City Administrator Larry Cort provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 9:07 p.m., no comment, closed at 9:07  
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Almberg asked about Attorney Weed’s fee agreement.   
 
Councilmember Servatius asked whether Ms. Esparza will monitor the hours used for Grant 
Weed’s services. 
 
Motion to approve Retainer Agreement for Municipal Legal and Support Services with 
Weed, Graafstra and Benson, Inc. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Retainer Agreement for Municipal  

   Legal and Support Services with Weed, Graafstra and Benson. Motion  
   seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously carried. 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 7 
 13



Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign the SECTOR Services Agreement between Oak Harbor 
Police Department and Washington State Patrol 
Police Chief Ed Green provided the staff report.  
 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 9:13 p.m., no comment, closed at 9:13  
p.m. 
 
Councilmember Servatius asked follow-up questions. 
 
Councilmember Munns and Campbell spoke in support of the SECTOR Agreement. 
 
Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign the SECTOR Services Agreement between Oak 
Harbor Police Department and Washington State Patrol 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the SECTOR Services  
               Agreement between Oak Harbor Police Department and Washington State Patrol.  
      Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously carried. 
 
 
9.J Special Event Permit to allow Alcohol in the Park for Race Week 
Police Chief Ed Green provided the staff report.   
 
Chief Green clarified that there will be no sale of alcohol despite the error in the agenda bill. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 9:18 p.m., no comment, closed at 9:18   
p.m. 
 
9.J Special Event Permit to allow Alcohol in the Park for Race Week  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the conditional permit upon receipt of the  

   appropriate insurance from the applicant for the beer garden for Race Week. Motion     
   seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously carried. 

 
9.k Financial Advisor Professional Services Agreement 
Finance Director Doug Merriman presented the staff report. 
 
Mr. Merriman explained changes that were made to the agreement since the draft was attached 
the agenda packet. 
 
9.k Financial Advisor Professional Services Agreement 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius move to extend meeting to 9:45 p.m., Seconded by  

    Councilmember Campbell, unanimously carried. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Severns moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Public Finance  

Management, Inc. agreement for financial advisory services, seconded by       
Councilmember Almberg, unanimously agreed. 

 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 8 
 14



ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Munns moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously 
carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
             Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 1, 2014 - Page 9 
 15



Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

July 9, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley     City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Bob Severns    Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
       Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
       Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
       Associate Planner Janice Biletnikoff 
       Project Engineer John Piccone  
        
            
Councilmembers Munns and Hizon were absent. 
     

Discussion of Waste Water Treatment Plant 

1. A summary of the Community Design Charrette process and suggestions re-
ceived 

City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the summary of the design process. 

Engineering received comments and suggestions from the last Waste Water Treatment 
Plant Workshop meeting in April of 2014. City staff refined proposed treatment plant 
layouts based on charrette input, cost and schedule.  

2. A review of two potential site plans that were designed to meet the technical 
siting factors and incorporate the community’s priorities 

Mr. Stowell provided a power point presentation of the preferred building concept plans. 

3. A presentation of the proposed location for the facility within the Windjammer 
vicinity 

Rendering of proposed treatment plant designs shown. 

 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes – July 9, 2014 - Page 1 
 16



4. An update on next steps and future opportunities to provide input. 

City Engineer Joe Stowell invited the community to get involved with the Clean Water 
Facility and share their ideas. 

The Presentation concluded at 6:20 p.m. 

Mayor Dudley turned to the Council for questions and comments at 6:21 p.m. 

Councilmember Campbell asked how the City will be able to rearrange parking along-
side People’s Bank for the new treatment plant.  He also discussed possible locations to 
add a new portion to Bayshore Park. 

Councilmember Almberg asked for a summary of Geo Tech and archeological results 
and where the lowest risk for building lies. Mr. Stowell explained that further north and 
to the west supports the best area for new construction. 

Development Director Steve Powers explained parking requirements and regulations in 
relation to the new treatment plant. 

Councilmember Almberg mentioned he does not believe we need to purchase addition-
al property in order to build the plant by negotiating with current property owners of 
properties adjacent to the future building site. 

Councilmember Almberg discussed the possibility to relocate the ballparks and sug-
gested making plans to change the location them if necessary. 

City Administrator Larry Cort provided insight to the potential ballpark relocation.  

Councilmember Severns asked about the Charrette’s response to relocating the ball 
fields.  Mr. Stowell answered that they saw the benefit in the proposed relocation. 

Councilmember Servatius referred to the treatment plant renderings shown on power 
point.  He agreed that relocation of the ball fields could provide great potential for the 
affected parties.  

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked when the old waste water treatment plant will be phased 
out. 

Councilmember Campbell asked about funds available to relocate the ball fields.  Fi-
nance Director Doug Merriman noted that the costs may be provided through relocation 
grants or the general fund.  Councilmember Campbell then asked how many years this 
plant will support the growing population in the long-term future.  

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked about property lines in relation to the proposed building 
plans. 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes – July 9, 2014 - Page 2 
 17



Councilmember Campbell mentioned that it is imperative to retain 3 ball fields.   Mayor 
Dudley added that there is an ongoing group involved in relocating the ball fields and 
improving what we currently have. 

Councilmember Almberg added that the present goal for the ball fields is to minimize 
negative impacts and net loss. 

Mayor Dudley announced that the next Council meeting will be the Regular Workshop 
on July 23, 2014.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting for open house discussion at 7:04 p.m. 

 
             Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes – July 9, 2014 - Page 3 
 18



  
Oak Harbor City Council 

Workshop Meeting Minutes 
July 23, 2014 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tempore Danny Paggao   City Administrator Larry Cort 
Councilmember Almberg    Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Beth Munns    Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
Councilmember Tara Hizon     Human Resources Admn Asst Kim Andrews 
       Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
       Chief of Police Ed Green 
       Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
       Deputy Chief Mike Buxton 

Senior Planner Ethan Spoo 
       Senior Planner Cac Kamak  
       Accountant Tallie Boyer  

Mayor’s Exec. Assist. Kellye Mazzoli 
          
            

Departmental Briefings 
 

1. Staffing Changes – Police 
 
Police Chief Green informed the Council that the department is in the selection process 
of Detective Sergeant and two promotions to Patrol Sergeants. 
 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone explained the Civil Service process for the se-
lection and promotion processes for Police.  There will be no budget changes with these 
staffing changes as the positions are already funded. 

 
2. Upcoming Meetings – Administration 

 
Finance Director Doug Merriman announced the next Budget Workshop is scheduled 
for August 6, 2014 at 3:00 p.m.  The Council will be meeting again on August 14 and 15 
in Leavenworth, Washington for the Leavenworth Municipal Budget Workshop. 

 
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 23, 2014 - Page 1 
 
 19



Pending Agenda Items 
 

1. Mangat Property Petition for Annexation (8/06) – Development Services 
 
Senior Planner Ethan Spoo explained some issues with the property such as fire flow.  
He also discussed zoning, sewer and water implementation if annexed including the fol-
lowing observations:  
 
The streets are not wide enough for waste trucks.  Three Fire Hydrants and access 
points are required, and boundaries for public safety are needed. 

 
2. Refer potential changes in the use of 2% funds to the Lodging Tax  
     Advisory Committee and 45-Day Notice (8/06) – Economic Development  

 
Ethan Spoo explained that to begin this process, standard notice must be provided.  
Then the Committee will meet and afterward Council will consider their recommenda-
tions.  
 

3. Collective Bargaining Agreement with Teamsters for Public Works (8/06) – 
Human Resources 

 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone provided an update on the new agreement 
settled with Teamsters Union for Public Works.  She announced that retro-active salary 
increases in the new contract will expire in December of 2016.  The Union ratified nor-
mal elections of benefits as well.  This Agreement is pending Council approval. 

 
4. New Unpaid Religious Holiday Legislation (8/06) – Human Resources 

 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone discussed the requirement for the new unpaid 
religious holidays- up to two days per year.  She handed out more specific information 
on the new legislation to Council.   

 
5. Local Agency Agreements for WSDOT for Veteran’s Park Sidewalk Repair  

and Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk Projects (8/06) – Public Works 
 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen explained that the funding has been received 
through the Taps grant process for the Waterfront Trail and Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk 
design projects.  Up to $150,000 has been received for the Waterfront project and up to 
$224,500 for the Crosswalk.   
 
Councilmember Almberg inquired about the safety of the crosswalk placement on 
Whidbey Avenue. 
 
Councilmember Munns stated concern for traffic flow. 
 
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 23, 2014 - Page 2 
 
 20



Chief Green stated that he is unaware of any accidents on Whidbey Avenue except at 
Oak Harbor Road.   
 

Emerging Issues 
 

1. Revenue Projections for 2015-2016 – Finance 
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman announced that the First Hearing on revenue projec-
tions for 2015-2016 will be presented at the August 6, 2014 Council Meeting. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao adjourned the meeting at 4:06 p.m. 
 
 
          Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Assistant to the Mayor 

Workshop Meeting Minutes – July 23, 2014 - Page 3 
 
 21



22



06/30/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 4:01:39PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158883 6/30/2014 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF21 PROF SVC/GENERAL 2014  23,702.00

 12,825.55PROF SVC/GENERAL 201424

Total :  36,527.55

Bank total :  36,527.55 1 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 36,527.55Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1

1Page:

23



07/01/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 8:11:28AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158884 7/1/2014 0007514  AHN, MICHELLE Ref000216011 UB Refund Cst #00161220  95.32

Total :  95.32

 158885 7/1/2014 0007512  BROWER, PATRICIA L Ref000216005 UB Refund Cst #00120830  120.00

 31.73UB Refund Cst #00120830Ref000216006

Total :  151.73

 158886 7/1/2014 0007513  MATRO, PRISCO OR MARY CLAIRE Ref000216008 UB Refund Cst #00151815  13.92

 7.42UB Refund Cst #00151815Ref000216009

 7.42UB Refund Cst #00151815Ref000216010

Total :  28.76

 158887 7/1/2014 0007515  MOSS, GEORGE Ref000216013 UB Refund Cst #00161789  120.31

Total :  120.31

 158888 7/1/2014 0001365  TARA PROPERTIES Ref000216007 UB Refund Cst #00125561  102.10

Total :  102.10

 158889 7/1/2014 0007516  WARDLAW, MATTHEW Ref000216014 UB Refund Cst #00164395  81.68

Total :  81.68

 158890 7/1/2014 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000216012 UB Refund Cst #00161517  214.91

Total :  214.91

Bank total :  794.81 7 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 794.81Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 7

1Page:

24



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158891 7/7/2014 0007517  MARION COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 070214 BAIL/WARRANT #CR599-599F  500.00

Total :  500.00

 158892 7/8/2014 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 070814 EAP/PREMIUMS  41.54

Total :  41.54

 158893 7/8/2014 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 063014 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,316.16

Total :  4,316.16

 158894 7/8/2014 0007273  CAMPGROUND AUTOMATION SYS, INC 063014 RV PARK ONLINE SYSTEM  444.00

Total :  444.00

 158895 7/10/2014 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 20998 JANITORIAL SERVICES  2,813.06

Total :  2,813.06

 158896 7/10/2014 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 23281 PADLOCKS/KEYS  335.40

 113.44PADLOCK/KEY23288

Total :  448.84

 158897 7/10/2014 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-707332 BATTERIES  147.14

Total :  147.14

 158898 7/10/2014 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 JUN 2014/WATER PURCHASED  118,345.00

 1,226.78JUN 2014/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 11,675.23JUN 2014/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  131,247.01

 158899 7/10/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 45916 WEBSITE CHANGES  25.00

Total :  25.00

 158900 7/10/2014 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0624201 AIRCARDS  467.43

Total :  467.43

 158901 7/10/2014 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1401892-IN TESTING  112.00

Total :  112.00

 158902 7/10/2014 0007522  BARGER, PENNY 070714 CAMP FEE REFUND  25.00

1Page:

25



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  25.00 158902 7/10/2014 0007522 0007522  BARGER, PENNY

 158903 7/10/2014 0000081  BAY PRINTING 22876 LAMINATION  299.47

Total :  299.47

 158904 7/10/2014 0004917  BLATTMAN, ENA KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  180.00

Total :  180.00

 158905 7/10/2014 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 3946 LEAK REPAIR  14,809.10

Total :  14,809.10

 158906 7/10/2014 0003675  CAMPBELL, JAMES TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  504.92

Total :  504.92

 158907 7/10/2014 0006983  CAMPING WORLD OF BURLINGTON 151306 LEAK TESTNIG  593.93

 2,403.26REPAIRS153103

Total :  2,997.19

 158908 7/10/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 199031585211 SUPPLIES  472.36

Total :  472.36

 158909 7/10/2014 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 08793000004 NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION  25.21

 10.00NATURAL GAS/TREATMENT PLANT18583000007

 145.09NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 40.64NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 158.51NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 244.40NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 22.53NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 31.47NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000004

Total :  677.85

 158910 7/10/2014 0004605  CEMEX 9428768379 STREET SWEEPINGS  1,546.11

 1,565.16SWEEPINGS9428768380

 1,450.81STREET SWEEPINGS9428793442

Total :  4,562.08

 158911 7/10/2014 0007525  CHARGEPOINT, INC 15902 CTSW-SAS-COMM  510.00

2Page:

26



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  510.00 158911 7/10/2014 0007525 0007525  CHARGEPOINT, INC

 158912 7/10/2014 0001433  COLE, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

Total :  27.00

 158913 7/10/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  112.98

 12.71XFINITY8498300270032028

 402.04CABLE/INTERNET8498300271046803

Total :  527.73

 158914 7/10/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 960833 BUILDING SAND  4,048.86

Total :  4,048.86

 158915 7/10/2014 0001860  CORT, LARRY TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  448.48

Total :  448.48

 158916 7/10/2014 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 13513 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAIN 1,405.75

Total :  1,405.75

 158917 7/10/2014 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 063014 JUN 2014/LAUNDRY SERVICES  268.44

 19.02LAUNDRY SERVICES1070

Total :  287.46

 158918 7/10/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-10775 TESTING  1,068.00

 18.00TESTING14-11789

Total :  1,086.00

 158919 7/10/2014 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 11-410-3 PROF SVC/42 " OUTFALL  4,130.81

 15,608.39PROF SVC/PIT ROAD11-413-15

 22,703.95PROF SVC/ARCHAEOLOGIST12-442-7

 3,326.69PROF SVC/SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAINAGE14-492

Total :  45,769.84

 158920 7/10/2014 0005086  EZINE INDUSTRIES, INC 858503 JUN 2014/COMMUNITY ALERT  9.75

Total :  9.75

 158921 7/10/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK17577 FASTENERS  0.86

 273.20SEALSWAOAK17582

3Page:

27



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  274.06 158921 7/10/2014 0002900 0002900  FASTENAL

 158922 7/10/2014 0007520  FITZGERALD, LOU 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

Total :  27.00

 158923 7/10/2014 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 073114 AUG 2014/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 158924 7/10/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 1,294.75CURRENT PHONE CHARGES240-2350

 57.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 215.16CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669

 62.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 38.12CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 51.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858

 61.54CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500

 57.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

 57.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

 56.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 337.99CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628

 61.01CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902

 83.01CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

 91.65CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 26.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  3,111.24

 158925 7/10/2014 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 94100 SUNWOOD  78.26

 27.69TREATED94452

Total :  105.95

 158926 7/10/2014 0004088  FULLER, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

4Page:

28



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  27.00 158926 7/10/2014 0004088 0004088  FULLER, MARY

 158927 7/10/2014 0000329  GALLS 000965589C CREDIT -270.00

 69.99UNIFORMS3524580

 146.93PANTS/HAFFNER3524580

 139.98PANTS/WALSTAD3524580

 27.47ENGRAVING3737652

Total :  114.37

 158928 7/10/2014 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,250.00

Total :  1,250.00

 158929 7/10/2014 0007501  GIBBON, NOEL 070314 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 158930 7/10/2014 0002788  GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC TRP/100057569 REGISTRATION/ESPARZA  195.00

Total :  195.00

 158931 7/10/2014 0001586  GOLDER, JAMES 1 TRAVEL REFUND  54.00

Total :  54.00

 158932 7/10/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9467860806 DUCT TAPE  142.83

Total :  142.83

 158933 7/10/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-13 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  8,967.08

Total :  8,967.08

 158934 7/10/2014 0000351  GRAYBAR 973327056 CUT REEL GENERIC  110.82

Total :  110.82

 158935 7/10/2014 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8282 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 158936 7/10/2014 0007506  HAGA, CAROLYN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

Total :  27.00

 158937 7/10/2014 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3668733 ROTORS/NOZZLES  634.37

5Page:

29



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  634.37 158937 7/10/2014 0000323 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY

 158938 7/10/2014 0005515  HDR ENGINEERING, INC 00415188-H PROF SVC/UTILITY RATE AND FEE UPDATE  1,313.50

Total :  1,313.50

 158939 7/10/2014 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 54485246 MISCELLANEOUS ITEM  53.26

 53.26MEMORY54501479

Total :  106.52

 158940 7/10/2014 0006629  HIZON, TARA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  457.83

Total :  457.83

 158941 7/10/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9020075 SURGE  23.85

 12.99IND VELCRO9572781

Total :  36.84

 158942 7/10/2014 0006047  HORIZON 2M029892 IDLER PULLEY  40.04

Total :  40.04

 158943 7/10/2014 0000394  HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 062414 JUL 2014/UNEMPLOYMENT SERVICES  110.00

Total :  110.00

 158944 7/10/2014 0000396  I-COM 14-Q3UF-7 3RD QTR 2014/USER FEES  87,289.49

 7,397.032ND QTR 2014/USER FEES14-UFQ2-7

Total :  94,686.52

 158945 7/10/2014 0000401  ISLAND COUNTY AUDITOR 0074905 FILING FEE  74.00

Total :  74.00

 158946 7/10/2014 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 063014 JUN 2014/TIPPING FEES  72,962.42

Total :  72,962.42

 158947 7/10/2014 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 070114 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  240.59

Total :  240.59

 158948 7/10/2014 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508197794 INMATE MEDS  70.08

Total :  70.08

6Page:

30



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158949 7/10/2014 0000445  JACKSON HIRSH, INC 0892001 LAMINATING SUPPLIES  153.06

Total :  153.06

 158950 7/10/2014 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 19808 DUMPING  10.87

 21.74DUMPING19813

 2,077.26EXCAVATOR RENTAL21337

Total :  2,109.87

 158951 7/10/2014 0007042  JONES, PATTY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  50.00

Total :  50.00

 158952 7/10/2014 0000491  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF246226 BOILER INSPECTIONS  659.00

Total :  659.00

 158953 7/10/2014 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5034475MB ASPHALT  148.90

 387.87ASPHALT5034499MB

 660.46ASPHALT5102418MB

 309.80ASPHALT5102422MB

 338.87ASPHALT5102440MB

Total :  1,845.90

 158954 7/10/2014 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400131442 SMOOTH TUBELESS  28.73

 61.14THRUST ANGLE ALIGNMENT41400131507

Total :  89.87

 158955 7/10/2014 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00061424 NIPPLES/CPLRS  1,205.95

Total :  1,205.95

 158956 7/10/2014 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  78.00

Total :  78.00

 158957 7/10/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

Total :  96.00

 158958 7/10/2014 0002449  LUNDGREN, KATHLEEN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

Total :  27.00

 158959 7/10/2014 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 86202 YARD WASTE  262.50

7Page:

31



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158959 7/10/2014 (Continued)0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY

 221.55YARD WASTE86274

 264.60YARD WASTE86351

 285.95YARD WASTE86395

 10.00YARD WASTE86400

 461.65YARD WASTE86442

 199.85YARD WASTE86666

 180.25YARD WASTE86750

 231.70YARD WASTE86806

 224.70YARD WASTE86860

 290.50YARD WASTE86921

 103.25YARD WASTE87029

 114.10YARD WASTE87075

 164.50YARD WASTE87109

 142.80YARD WASTE87184

 270.20YARD WASTE87255

 172.20YARD WASTE87506

 10.00YARD WASTE87514

 20.00YARD WASTE87573

 241.15YARD WASTE87577

 20.00YARD WASTE87583

 229.95YARD WASTE87644

 246.05YARD WASTE87693

 128.80YARD WASTE87832

Total :  4,496.25

 158960 7/10/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 422529 GROCERIES  114.95

 244.97GROCERIES422537

Total :  359.92

 158961 7/10/2014 0005025  MASCOTT EQUIPMENT 308745 ALARM REPAIRS  288.40

Total :  288.40

 158962 7/10/2014 0007306  MASSEY, MEG EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  75.48

Total :  75.48

 158963 7/10/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P35241 JUN 2014/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  487.96

8Page:

32



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158963 7/10/2014 (Continued)0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC

 2,918.51JUN 2014/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP35242

Total :  3,406.47

 158964 7/10/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 35241 JUN 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  288.27

 887.10JUN 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS35242

 1,369.62TMT STORAGEM141405

Total :  2,544.99

 158965 7/10/2014 0000040  MATRIX 608258962 LONG DISTANCE  400.37

Total :  400.37

 158966 7/10/2014 0007519  MAYOTTE, BRENDA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  54.00

Total :  54.00

 158967 7/10/2014 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.27

Total :  37.27

 158968 7/10/2014 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  510.72

 73.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

 125.00TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

 70.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB2

Total :  779.72

 158969 7/10/2014 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 062314 JUN 2014/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 158970 7/10/2014 0007129  MICRO PRECISION CALIBRATION, I STL-13643 CALIBRATION SERVICES  290.30

Total :  290.30

 158971 7/10/2014 0007526  MIDWEST COVER, INC 686623 BAG TIES  865.00

Total :  865.00

 158972 7/10/2014 0007524  MORRIS, EDWARD 5566 MOORAGE REFUND  3.25

Total :  3.25

 158973 7/10/2014 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00533894_SNV SHIRT  74.11

9Page:

33



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  74.11 158973 7/10/2014 0004423 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES

 158974 7/10/2014 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0523987-IN FUEL  805.57

Total :  805.57

 158975 7/10/2014 0000644  NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS 061914 CAR SHOW ADVERTISING  1,723.48

Total :  1,723.48

 158976 7/10/2014 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 128121 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  5,617.12

Total :  5,617.12

 158977 7/10/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 237879C FILM -38.02

 331.80BRUSHES/PRIMER/PAINT241293

 45.31JOINT PASTE/ADAPTERS/COUPLES/NIPPLES241316

 17.34RSTP/PAINTBRUSHES241384

 342.32HEAD MULT241419

 69.31CONTAINER/FARM LTX241420

 25.51HAMMERITE/CAR WASH241452

 3.58DR DCK241464

 14.12TIES241475

 3.35TWINE/WALLPLATE241485

 4.53EXT/WASHERS241547

 33.64CLEANER/HAND SANITIZER/ANGLE241554

 43.97HAMMERITE/GLSBLK241563

-20.77FASTENERS241564

 6.84MEND PLATE241616

 52.42ROLLER TRAY/BULBS/HAMMERITE241642

 23.88COUPLE/BATTERY241672

 4.09FASTENERS241698

 1.89FASTENERS241710

 3.25MAGNETIC KEY STORAGE241762

 13.00SNAP241780

 12.25PIPE/ADAPTER/BUSHING/COUPLE241807

 18.47AQUA KEM241869

Total :  1,012.08

 158978 7/10/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-206820 CONNECTOR  32.97

10Page:

34



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 158978 7/10/2014 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 29.31MINI LAMP/CLAMP001-206863

 29.38FLASHERS001-206943

 4.40FILTERS001-206950

 17.37SHIFT BUTTON001-206961

-201.10RET001-206965

 69.41STANDARD SWITCH001-207117

 4.40FILTERS001-207159

 9.04FILTERS001-207187

 4.76RAD CAP001-207301

 10.04FILTERS001-207321

 10.04FILTERS001-207334

 9.10BATTERY CABLE001-207335

 12.07FILTERS001-207525

 39.22FILTERS001-207707

 82.84FILTERS001-207717

 4.40FILTERS001-207785

 13.78AIR BAG LAMP001-207817

 77.17FILTERS001-207901

 4.76RAD CAP001-207907

 38.40FILTERS001-207908

 2.32FILTERS001-207930

Total :  304.08

 158979 7/10/2014 0000676  OAK HARBOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 063014 PETTY CASH  19.32

Total :  19.32

 158980 7/10/2014 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000130488 JUL 2014/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33

Total :  6,708.33

 158981 7/10/2014 0003092  OAK HARBOR SIGNS 109 AWNING REMOVAL/INSTALLATION  5,261.08

Total :  5,261.08

 158982 7/10/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0078052 TIRES  816.81

 864.55TIRES0078053

 732.62TIRES0078102

11Page:

35



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,413.98 158982 7/10/2014 0002985 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC

 158983 7/10/2014 0000696  PAGGAO, DANNY TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  409.36

Total :  409.36

 158984 7/10/2014 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  108.00

Total :  108.00

 158985 7/10/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  13.07

 96.45ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVE200004839284

 30.83ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 13.07ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 281.16ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534

 681.24ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 3,047.93ELECTRICITY/FT NUGENT RD300000007421

 25.62ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

Total :  4,189.37

 158986 7/10/2014 0006762  RAINIER ENVIRONMENTAL 1492 TESTING  500.00

Total :  500.00

 158987 7/10/2014 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 070814 LEASEHOLD TAX  27,994.15

Total :  27,994.15

 158988 7/10/2014 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1337 TAPING SERVICES  1,407.62

Total :  1,407.62

 158989 7/10/2014 0000775  ROSEN, CATHERINE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  100.71

Total :  100.71

 158990 7/10/2014 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-343690 MOTOR/V-BELT/RELAY  402.61

Total :  402.61

 158991 7/10/2014 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 14-2611 BALL VALVE  294.31

Total :  294.31

 158992 7/10/2014 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 062614 PETTY CASH  226.28

12Page:

36



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  226.28 158992 7/10/2014 0000852 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH

 158993 7/10/2014 0000964  SHERIFFS & POLICE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OFINV025828 SALES TAX  17.28

Total :  17.28

 158994 7/10/2014 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9403794514 SHREDDING  58.00

 130.00SHREDDING9403794515

 138.60SHREDDING9403795116

Total :  326.60

 158995 7/10/2014 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-286534 VALVES  171.42

 68.48LOW/MED SWI14-288042

 53.81VALVE CAP14-288455

 144.46GLOVES14-288458

Total :  438.17

 158996 7/10/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 402930 PEANUT BUTTER  10.80

 34.09FENCE POST489648

 217.38ROUNDUP502072

Total :  262.27

 158997 7/10/2014 0007521  SMITH, ERIK EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  26.80

Total :  26.80

 158998 7/10/2014 0000851  SPRINT 140239187 LONG DISTANCE  8.89

 5.76LONG DISTANCE182311697

Total :  14.65

 158999 7/10/2014 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 062014 LIFE/POCFF  220.63

Total :  220.63

 159000 7/10/2014 0003613  STANLEY ACCESS, INC 0903444337 CONTROL BOX  550.33

Total :  550.33

 159001 7/10/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3232608492 POUCHES  64.63

 40.68CARD STOCK/PADS3232608494

 307.50DVDS/ENVELOPES/MEMO BOOKS/PENS/POST ITS3233582797

 430.97HOOKS/TABS/BOXES/TAPE/INK3233582800

13Page:

37



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159001 7/10/2014 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 67.18BATTERY BACKUP3233582801

 33.93MARKER BOARD3233582803

 99.53BOARD3234076604

 800.76MEMO BOOKS/SCISSORS/TONER3234076605

 460.89PRINTER3234076608

 239.21WRIST REST/PRINTER3234076611

 53.48LABELS/PAPER CLIPS/PENS3234642669

 204.33INK3234642670

 258.11PRINTER3234642671

 115.91THERMAL ROLLS3234642672

Total :  3,177.11

 159002 7/10/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  126.00

Total :  126.00

 159003 7/10/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1019792 PEST EXTERMINATION  54.35

Total :  54.35

 159004 7/10/2014 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 7510-001 MTU FABRICATION/INSTALLATION  15,962.60

Total :  15,962.60

 159005 7/10/2014 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 984723 SIGNS  130.35

Total :  130.35

 159006 7/10/2014 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 070114 COURT/BC FEES  12,119.01

Total :  12,119.01

 159007 7/10/2014 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-110842 FINANCIALS CONVERSION  937.00

Total :  937.00

 159008 7/10/2014 0006331  ULINE 58915592 RECLOSABLE BAGS  56.50

Total :  56.50

 159009 7/10/2014 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W254 SHIPPING  38.56

Total :  38.56

 159010 7/10/2014 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 061814 LONG TERM CARE  142.20

14Page:

38



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  142.20 159010 7/10/2014 0000922 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

 159011 7/10/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000611990 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,419.13

Total :  2,419.13

 159012 7/10/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  126.90

Total :  126.90

 159013 7/10/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  30.50

Total :  30.50

 159014 7/10/2014 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 4040172 APR 2014/LOCATES  87.78

Total :  87.78

 159015 7/10/2014 0006694  VALLQUIST, MARIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  27.00

Total :  27.00

 159016 7/10/2014 0007523  VAN ALTVORTST, JAMES 629 MOORAGE REFUND  65.50

Total :  65.50

 159017 7/10/2014 0002557  WAGNER, CLIFF 1 TRAVEL REFUND  54.00

Total :  54.00

 159018 7/10/2014 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 20113771 REGISTRATION/SILVEIRA/YZAGGUIRE  150.00

Total :  150.00

 159019 7/10/2014 0007518  WELCH, TY 070314 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 159020 7/10/2014 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC 754263.2 BUSHING  105.74

Total :  105.74

 159021 7/10/2014 0005064  WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE 21224 2ND QTR 2014/MIN CHAIN  387.75

Total :  387.75

 159022 7/10/2014 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1269 JUN 2014/ANIMAL SHELTER  8,333.37

Total :  8,333.37

 159023 7/10/2014 0001016  WHIDBEY NEWS TIMES 0000222364 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL  75.00

15Page:

39



07/10/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

10:43:08AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  75.00 159023 7/10/2014 0001016 0001016  WHIDBEY NEWS TIMES

 159024 7/10/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 46989 CAMPING REMITTANCE ENVELOPES  310.88

Total :  310.88

 159025 7/10/2014 0007078  WHIDBEY SIGN COMPANY 14201 RACEWEEK FLAGS  1,232.17

Total :  1,232.17

 159026 7/10/2014 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 50400 CONTROLLER/LICENSE  3,330.02

Total :  3,330.02

 159027 7/10/2014 0001068  ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC 0170193 SIGNS  234.36

Total :  234.36

Bank total :  540,358.22 137 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 540,358.22Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 137

16Page:

40



07/16/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

12:13:26PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 159028 7/16/2014 0007527  QUICHOCHO, JEFFREY Ref000216317 UB Refund Cst #00157424  1,600.00

Total :  1,600.00

Bank total :  1,600.00 1 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,600.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1

1Page:

41



42



43



44



Biography Form 
 
 
 
Recommended Board Appointment for:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee  

 
Name:  Peter Franssen  Date:  07/16/2014  

 
Address: 33345 State Route 20  

 
City, State, Zip: Oak Harbor, WA 98277  

         
Telephone Number (O) 675-4441      Email: Pete@jetcityequipmewnt.com  
                            (Cell) 914-7450 
           
Mailing Address (if different from above):  N/A  

 
 
 
 
Resident of Oak Harbor/Whidbey Island for: 40 Years 

 
Occupation and Place of Employment (if retired, reference previous 
occupation): Co-Owner/Manager of Several Businesses: 

   Auld Holland Inn 
   Jet City Equipment 
   A-1 Towing 
   F-1 Sand & Gravel 
   Several Apartment Complexes  
 
 
 
 
Local Group or Civic Affiliations: Boy Scouts of America  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Special Interests: Automobile Restoration / Boating   
 
 
 
Other General Comments:    

45



46



Action Date Notes

CC Workshop 5/28/2014 Advance notice on new system 

& 45-day clock

CC Mtg 7/1/2014 45-day notice & confirm LTAC 

appointments

LTAC Logistics  Meeting July Discuss new schedule and new 

forms, welcome new members

Advertise for 

Submissions/Information 

Sessions

End of 

July/Beg. 

August

Allow 45 days for submissions

Applicant Information 

Session

8/13/2014 Staff gives information session 

for potential applicants

45-day statutory 

requirement met

8/15/2014 End of 45-day statutory period

Applications Due 9/19/2014

LTAC Applicant-

Presentations Meeting

10/1/2014 Applicant Presentations & 

Committee Questions

LTAC Award 

Recommendations Mtg

10/15/2014 Recommendations made to CC

CC Workshop 10/22/2014 Advance Notice on Awards

CC Award Meeting 11/4/2014 Grant Awards

Send out award letters 11/5/2014

Attachment A: LTAC Proposed Schedule, 2014

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Attachment A:  
Clifford Howard Resume

Clifford F Howard 

574 N.E. Easy Street Oak Harbor, WA 98277 | 360-675-5682/360-661-6871| cliff@ipds.net 

SUMMARY  

I have lived the Oak Harbor lifecycle. I was fortunate to leave Oak Harbor when I was young and 
gain a trade and useful employment which was unavailable in Oak Harbor. A lot of my friends I 
went to high school with were not as fortunate. I now have 2 children and they are facing the 
same daunting issues that I faced when entering the workforce in Oak Harbor. Oak Harbor has 
no training for the trades, there are no jobs beyond part time minimum wage jobs unless you 
happen to know someone to give you a foot in the door. Unfortunately in Oak Harbor there are 
many more feet than doors to step into. 

I have watched my children go through the same procession of applying for and working at 
minimum wage part time jobs until they finally give up and move to a better environment for 
employment. My son is now living and employed in Southern Washington and my daughter is 
self-employed, which pays better than any job she can find in Oak Harbor even though she has a 
degree from Skagit Valley College. 

Oak Harbor has changed over the years, instead of minimum wage jobs working for the local 
farms or the poultry industry that used to thrive on the Island we now have minimum wage jobs 
at Walmart, other retail and the local hotel motels. The future of Oak Harbor is in our children 
and we are letting them down. As the old saying goes, Oak Harbor is a beautiful place to live but 
a horrible place to raise and keep a family together. 

If I were chosen to be a member of the Planning Commission I would encourage growth and 
living wage jobs in our city. We need to develop a well-rounded community, stop placing all of 
our future in depending solely on the military to keep our city vibrant and develop a strong local 
economy that stands on its own. The military is a blessing for Oak Harbor. While it brings us 
great economic benefit it allows us to rest on our laurels of being a great military community 
while ignoring real issues that we and our children face in living here as civilians. 

We cannot allow ourselves to be complacent when it comes to jobs and our children, we need 
to attempt to develop a well-rounded community that our citizens and their children deserve. 
Hopefully my history of living and raising a family in Oak Harbor will be a valuable asset to the 
Planning Commission and its input to the City Council on planning decisions. 

(Continued) 

67

mailto:cliff@ipds.net


Attachment A:  
Clifford Howard Resume 

 
COMPUTER SKILLS  

 
 

 

 
Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, Power Point, Publisher, Access, Visual Studio, Expression 
Web. Coding languages .html, .asp and .aspx. Web page design, database integration and 
SQL server integration. Member Microsoft Partner program through 2014. Currently 
specialist in integrating Epicor retail point of sale software in a retail environment and 
Windows desktop software integration. 

 
EXPERIENCE AND HISTORY  

 
 

• 1955 to 1973- 1990 to present- Resident North Whidbey/Oak Harbor 

• 1955- Born in the state of Texas, moved to Oak Harbor in 1955 as a Navy dependent, my father 
was a Pearl Harbor Survivor and 31 year Veteran upon his retirement in 1961. Attended Clover 
Valley Elementary, Oak Harbor Junior High School and Oak Harbor High School. 

• 1973- Left Oak Harbor because there was no future in Oak Harbor for any possibility to receive 
adequate on the job training or employment beyond part time minimum wage employment. 

• 1973 to 1979- Relocated to California where I entered into a apprenticeship training program 
offered though ASC (Automotive Service Council, now ASCCA) attaining Journeyman status in 
1977 working for ATR Transmissions in West Los Angeles., CA. 

• 1979 -1981- AAMCO Transmissions Mount Vernon. Transmission technician. 

• 1981 to 1990- Gearhart Ford/Frontier Ford Burlington, WA.  ASE (National Institute for 
Automotive Service Excellence) Certified Master Technician, Ford Certified Master Technician, 
Subaru Certified Master Technician and Electronic Engine Control Specialist. Automotive Shop 
foreman 1985 through 1990 in charge of technical training, interviewing replacement techs, 
interfacing with Ford and Subaru engineers and quality control. 

• 1984- Purchased home in Conway, WA which I still own. 

• 1990 to present- Opened small business, IPD Services specializing in ecommerce internet 
development with many clients across the world. 

• 1990- Relocated back to Oak Harbor to take care of elderly father. 

• 1992- Purchased home in Island County/Oak Harbor. Annexed into city in 2008. 

• 1995- Took position as IT Director for Frontier Building Supply managing and maintaining 
computer systems, software, servers and network for 80 plus employees in 7 different locations 
in our local area. Presently still employed. 

 

68



69



OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, July 14, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Public Works Facility Conference Room 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
(360) 279-4750 
 

NOTES 
 
1. Call to Order/Approval of Meeting Notes (May 12, 2014) 

Park Board members in attendance were Mike Wright, Dee Harbour, Erica Wasinger, 
Daisy Sapida, K.C. Pohtilla and alternate Park Board member Melissa Riker.  Absent 
was Joel Servatius.  Also in attendance were staff members Hank Nydam, Cac Kamak 
Joe Stowell and Wendy Hobert.  Also in attendance were citizens Skip Pohtilla and Ron 
Hancock.  Special guest Richard Nash was also in attendance. 
 
Mike Wright called the meeting to order.  There were no changes to the May 12 meeting 
notes. 
 

2. WWTP Project Update 
Joe Stowell, City Engineer, presented an update with visuals on the WWTP design 
stage.  He explained the Bayshore Drive extension options and how the site and design 
options may affect Windjammer Park.  Mike asked what will happen to City Beach 
Street.  Joe explained that City Beach Street, along with the kitchen and bathroom 
buildings, is not entirely figured out at this point.  Desire to relocate the buildings 
instead of eliminating them is strong.  Mike also asked how these potential designs 
affect the numerous events that happen at the park.  Joe explained that the goals are to 
keep these function areas somewhere in the design.  He also indicated that the design 
for Bayshore Drive, if in the south location, is to be heavily tree lined, raised sidewalks, 
etc. to keep traffic speeds down.  Hank asked about the plans to incorporate a 
community building.  Joe said that is a huge part of the design and they are just trying 
to figure out whether to accommodate for 50 or 250 people.  Joe gave examples of other 
ideas for the park space, such as a splash park.  He continued to explain that there is a 
lot to refine in the design and the next step is for City Council to approve the WWTP 
site location at the August 6, 2014 City Council meeting.  Skip Pohtilla expressed that it 
is his opinion that extending Bayshore Drive to the south uses more park area and is not 
needed if we have the potential future connector road.  He feels it is potentially a 
worthless street if always blocked off.  Skip would like to see it made for pedestrian use 
only.  Hank reminded everyone that these decisions are far off from now and 
discussions are still being held.  Skip stated that the decision on the site location now 
will affect it.  Cac explained that, as the design develops, the impacts and resources will 
change therefore, we need to allow for flexibility.  Mike asked about how the current 
treatment plant will function while the new treatment plant is being constructed.  Joe 
explained that, currently, the existing WWTP pumps to the Seaplane Lagoon and that 
will still be the plan during construction.  Mike asked about the existing Whidbey 
Island Bank building and future plans for it.  Joe stated that no plans have been made 
yet but there have been many suggestions. 
 
 70



 
OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, July 14, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Page 2 

 
3. Naming the “Teachers Tribute” Garden 

Richard Nash, the sculpture designer of the art piece that was donated by Wallie Funk 
and dedicated to four former OHHS English teachers, explained that a name is needed 
for the garden in which the six foot circular cordoned steel art piece was placed, which 
was within a stand of Madrona Trees, near the Japanese Garden, at Windjammer Park.  
Richard stated that the Oak Harbor Garden Club has also been invested in this project.   
 
MOTION:  Moved by Dee Harbour, seconded by Daisy Sapida, the Park Board 
unanimously approved the proposal to name the garden area “Teachers Tribute 
Garden” and forward their recommendation to City Council for approval. 
 
Cac reminded everyone that the name is not official until City Council approves it.  
Richard showed pieces of his art work to the Board.  Dee suggested that he design the 
sign for the new garden. 
 

4. 42” Outfall Project Update 
Joe Stowell explained that the project has begun and will be in progress for the next few 
months.  He explained the history of the project and how, due to the Pioneer Way 
Project and the archeology involved, the alignment needed to be changed.  Melissa 
asked how the 42” Outfall Project will affect the RV Park patrons.  Joe explained that the 
contractor is giving us a schedule to explain what and when things will be happening 
and we are communicating the information with the patrons.  Most likely the starting 
time for work will be very early in the mornings due to the tides.  This project has been 
planned for over a year and all event coordinators have been notified and have made 
plans to accommodate the project. 
 

5. Wading Pool Project Update 
Hank stated that the fences are down around the pools and the pools are filled with 
sand.  The Diggables should be here in 6 weeks.  Purchasing and installing the 
chimes/drums will take longer as fundraising continues.  The fundraising has raised 
$1,200 so far.  Hank said that regardless of fundraising, he would like to at least have 
pavers in place by the end of the year to protect the sand.  Daisy and Mike stated that 
they have had to explain why the wading pools no longer exist to numerous people.  
Hank stated that the lagoon is a lot busier now. 
 

♦ Dee asked Hank to go with her to the Mayor about the Freund property.  Hank agreed and 
said he would set up the meeting. 
 

♦ Mike asked about making Hal Ramaley park a non-smoking park.  Hand indicated that 
they are working with the Spin Café about the traffic from that location to the gazebo, in 
order to improve the situation for everyone.  Hank suggested checking out the rain garden 
since its spray free. 

 

71



OAK HARBOR PARK BOARD 
Monday, July 14, 2014, 11:30 a.m. 
Page 3 

 
♦ Dee said the Oak Harbor Garden Club wants to do an inventory of all the Garry Oak trees 

in Oak Harbor and asked Hank for help. 
 

♦ Ron Hancock asked for a Veteran’s Park update.  Hank replied that the short term plan is 
to reroute the walk area and install a wood railing.  Cac explained that the long term plan 
includes full funding for a kiosk, improved trail and a new railing made of metal.  All items 
are possible due to the award of a 100% grant. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 12:48 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Wendy Hobert 
Engineering Administrative Assistant 

 

72



73



74



RESOLUTION NO.14-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING THE 
CITY EMPLOYEE POLICY MANUAL TO ALLOW EMPLOYEES TO RECEIVE UP TO 
TWO (2) UNPAID HOLIDAYS PER CALENDAR YEAR FOR “A REASON OF FAITH OR 
CONSCIENCE OR AN ORGANIZED ACTIVITY CONDUCTED UNDER THE AUSPICES 
OF A RELIGIOUS DENOMINATION, CHURCH, OR RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATION.”  
 
WHEREAS, the Employee Policy Manual was last updated on June 18, 2012; and  
 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2014, new legislation went into effect requiring government 
employers to provide up to two unpaid holidays per year for faith based reasons; and   
 
WHEREAS, all local agencies must adopt guidelines by resolution or ordinance implementing 
the new faith based leave law; 
  
NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak 
Harbor that:  
 
Section1.  The Employee Policy Manual, last updated on June 18, 2012, shall be amended to 
include Exhibit A to this Resolution, “Religious Leave”, which allows employees to receive 
up to two (2) unpaid holidays per calendar year for “a reason of faith or conscience or an 
organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church, or 
religious organization.”  
 

Section2. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 
 
PASSED and approved by the City Council this day of, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
        

_______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  
 

  

75



EXHIBIT A 
 
 

UNPAID HOLIDAYS FOR REASONS OF FAITH OR CONSCIENCE 

Employees are entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for a reason of faith or conscience or 
an organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church, or religious 
organization. 

The employee may select the days on which he or she desires to take the two unpaid holidays after 
consultation with his or her supervisor. If an employee prefers to take the two unpaid holidays on 
specific days, then the employee will be allowed to take the unpaid holidays on the days he or she has 
selected unless the absence would unduly disrupt operations, impose an undue hardship, or the 
employee is necessary to maintain public safety. The term “undue hardship” has the meaning contained 
in the rule established by the Office of Financial Management. 

If possible, an employee should submit a written request for an unpaid holiday provided for by this 
section to the employee’s supervisor a minimum of 2-weeks prior to the requested day.   Approval of 
the unpaid holiday shall not be deemed approved unless it has been authorized in writing by the 
employee’s supervisor. The employee’s supervisor shall evaluate requests by considering the desires of 
the employee, scheduled work, anticipated peak workloads, response to unexpected emergencies, the 
availability, if any, of a qualified substitute, and consideration of the meaning of “undue hardship” 
developed by rule of the Office of Financial Management. 

The two unpaid holidays allowed by this section must be taken during the calendar year, if at all; they do 
not carry over from one year to the next. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

76



77



78



79



80



RESOLUTION NO. 14-28 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL 
DIRECTING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH DESIGN OF THE NEW 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT AS PRESENTED 
THROUGH THIS RESOLUTION  

 
WHEREAS, the 2008 City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan identifies 
the need for a new wastewater treatment facility to meet future growth and to 
replace aging and at-risk infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, recognizing that the City of Oak Harbor is connected to the pristine 
waters of Puget  Sound, specifically Oak Harbor Bay and Crescent Harbor Bay, 
the City’s goal is to obtain the highest level of water quality practical while 
recognizing the limitations of the rate payers of the City to fund the 
improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, National Pollution Discharge Elimination System Waste Discharge 
Permit No. WA0020567 from the Washington State Department of Ecology has 
directed the City of Oak Harbor to increase wastewater treatment capacity by 
December 31, 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan of 2013-2018 
specifically lists the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities Plan as a prioritized 
public project to be undertaken within the capital improvement plan time period; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2012, City Council adopted Resolution 12-17 
selecting the Windjammer Park site using a membrane bioreactor process (MBR) 
to best meet the needs of the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City sought public feedback at a Special City Council Workshop 
and Open House on April 30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City further sought public involvement through a Charrette with 
adjacent property owners, interested members of the public, city staff and 
consultants on May 15, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City considered technical factors such as transportation, 
geotechnical, cultural and schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City considered supplemental factors such as park impact, site 
amenities, commercial value and park access; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City considered charrette concerns related to views, relation to 
the existing windmill, ball field relocation, future Bayshore Avenue, pedestrian 

RESOLUTION 14-28 – Page 1 of 3 
 
 

81



access, park impact, park integration, potential use of existing buildings owned 
by the City and event parking. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak 
Harbor as follows: 
 

1. The City shall proceed with design of the Clean Water Facility based on 
the attached site plan maintaining the following boundaries. 

a. Bayshore to the South; and 
b. City owned property to the North; and 
c. SE City Beach Street to the East; and 
d. The westerly boundary of City property. 

2. The design shall strive to meet the following. 
a. Improved transportation; and 
b. Improved parking for both businesses and events; and 
c. Reduce geotechnical risks through design; and 
d. Strive to minimize impacts on cultural resources; and 
e. Improve access and amenities in Windjammer Park. 

 
 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 6th day of august, 
2014. 
        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
__________________________ 

      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
Attest:      Approved as to form: 
 

 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
  

RESOLUTION 14-28 – Page 2 of 3 
 
 

82



 

Proposed Site Plan 

RESOLUTION 14-28 – Page 3 of 3 
 
 

83



84



85



RESOLUTION NO. 14-30 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING 
AND AGREEING TO COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS, POLICIES 

AND PROCEDURES INCLUDED IN THE LOCAL AGENCY 
AGREEMENT FOR FEDERAL FUNDING OF THE DESIGN PHASE OF 

THE WATERFRONT TRAIL ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, a February 2013 landslide on the bluff in Veteran’s Park caused a section 
of the Waterfront Trail to be closed for public safety. 
 
WHEREAS, the Waterfront Trail is a vital, heavily used recreational and pedestrian 
travel facility connecting many important features and areas of Oak Harbor. 

 
WHEREAS, the Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project was developed to repair 
slide damage, re-establish the paved trail connection between the Downtown and 
the Marina and provide enhancements to the Waterfront Trail. 
 
WHEREAS, a Transportation Alternative Program federal grant funding 
application for the Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project was submitted to the 
Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization. 
 
WHEREAS, the Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project was evaluated and 
selected by the Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization for 
funding by the federal Transportation Alternative Program. 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation administers 
federal Transportation Alternative Program funds allocated to the State of 
Washington. 
 
WHEREAS, a Local Agency Agreement with the Washington State Department 
of Transportation completed on the prescribed form is required before federal 
funds can be used to reimburse Oak Harbor for the costs of designing the 
project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as 
follows: The City of Oak Harbor hereby agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 
set forth in the Local Agency Agreement for the Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-30    Page 1 of 2 
 

86



PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 6th day of August, 2014. 
        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
__________________________ 

      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
Attest:      Approved as to form: 
 

 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-30    Page 2 of 2 
 

87



Local Agency Agreement

Agency Official Washington State Department of Transportation

By

Title

Date Executed

By

Director of Local Programs

Agency

Address
City of Oak Harbor
865 S.E Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA
98277

The Local Agency having complied, or hereby agreeing to comply, with the terms and conditions set forth in (1) Title 23, U.S. Code Highways, (2)
the regulations issued pursuant thereto, (3) 2 CFR 225, (4) Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-102, and A-133, (5) the policies and
procedures promulgated by the Washington State Department of Transportation, and (6) the federal aid project agreement entered into between the
State and Federal Government, relative to the above project, the Washington State Department of Transportation will authorize the Local Agency to
proceed on the project by a separate notification. Federal funds which are to be obligated for the project may not exceed the amount shown herein on
line r, column 3, without written authority by the State, subject to the approval of the Federal Highway Administration. All project costs not
reimbursed by the Federal Government shall be the responsibility of the Local Agency.

Project Description

Description of Work

Name Length

Termini

Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project 2.09 mi.

Oak Harbor Marina to SW Scenic Heights Street

Type of Work
Estimate of Funding

(1) (2) (3)

PE

Right of Way

Construction

a. Agency
b. Other

d. State
e. Total PE Cost Estimate (a+b+c+d)

Consultant 29,000.00

1,000.00
30,000.00

f. Agency
g. Other

i. State
j. Total R/W Cost Estimate (f+g+h+i)
k. Contract
l. Other
m. Other

o. Agency
p. State
q. Total CN Cost Estimate (k+l+m+n+o+p)
r. Total Project Cost Estimate (e+j+q) 30,000.00

29,000.00

1,000.00
30,000.00

Federal Funds
Estimated

Funds
Estimated Agency

Project Funds
Estimated Total

1

Repair of damaged section of existing trail, construction of new sidewalk, installing way-finding information,
landscaping, historic and environmental education.

30,000.00

For OSC WSDOT Use Only

Project No.

Agreement No.

CFDA No.  20.205

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for PE

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for RW

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for CN

%

%

%

(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance)

Mayor, City of Oak Harbor

h. Other

c. Other

n. Other

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014

Proposed Advertisement Date:

88



Once written authorization is given, the Agency agrees to show continuous progress through monthly billings. Failure to show continuous progress
may result the Agency’s project becoming inactive, as described in 23 CFR 630, and subject to de-obligation of federal aid funds and/or agreement
closure.

If right of way acquisition, or actual construction of the road for which preliminary engineering is undertaken is not started by the close of the
tenth fiscal year following the fiscal year in which preliminary engineering phase was authorized, the Agency will repay to the State the sum or sums
of federal funds paid to the Agency under the terms of this agreement (see Section IX).

If actual construction of the road for which right of way has been purchased is not started by the close of the tenth fiscal year following the fiscal
year in which the right of way phase was authorized, the Agency will repay to the State the sum or sums of federal funds paid to the Agency under
the terms of this agreement (see Section IX).

Construction Method of Financing (Check Method Selected)

State Ad and Award

Method A - Advance Payment - Agency Share of total construction cost (based on contract award)

Method B - Withhold from gas tax the Agency's share of total construction cost (line 4, column 2) in the amount of
$ at $ per month for months.

Local Force or Local Ad and Award

Method C - Agency cost incurred with partial reimbursement
The Local Agency further stipulates that pursuant to said Title 23, regulations and policies and procedures, and as
a condition to payment of the federal funds obligated, it accepts and will comply with the applicable provisions set
forth below. Adopted by official action on

, , Resolution/Ordinance No.

2

Provisions

Certain types of work and services shall be provided by the State on this project as requested by the Agency and described in the Type of Work
above. In addition, the State will furnish qualified personnel for the supervision and inspection of the work in progress. On Local Agency advertised
and awarded projects, the supervision and inspection shall be limited to ensuring all work is in conformance with approved plans, specifications, and
federal aid requirements. The salary of such engineer or other supervisor and all other salaries and costs incurred by State forces upon the project
will be considered a cost thereof. All costs related to this project incurred by employees of the State in the customary manner on highway payrolls
and vouchers shall be charged as costs of the project.

I.  Scope of Work
The Agency shall provide all the work, labor, materials, and services necessary to perform the project which is described and set forth in detail in

the “Project Description” and “Type of Work.”
When the State acts for and on behalf of the Agency, the State shall be deemed an agent of the Agency and shall perform the services described

and indicated in “Type of Work” on the face of this agreement, in accordance with plans and specifications as proposed by the Agency and approved
by the State and the Federal Highway Administration.

When the State acts for the Agency but is not subject to the right of control by the Agency, the State shall have the right to perform the work
subject to the ordinary procedures of the State and Federal Highway Administration.

II.  Delegation of Authority
The State is willing to fulfill the responsibilities to the Federal Government by the administration of this project. The Agency agrees that the State

shall have the full authority to carry out this administration. The State shall review, process, and approve documents required for federal aid
reimbursement in accordance with federal requirements. If the State advertises and awards the contract, the State will further act for the Agency in
all matters concerning the project as requested by the Agency. If the Local Agency advertises and awards the project, the State shall review the work
to ensure conformity with the approved plans and specifications.

III.  Project Administration

IV.  Availability of Records
All project records in support of all costs incurred and actual expenditures kept by the Agency are to be maintained in accordance with local

government accounting procedures prescribed by the Washington State Auditor’s Office, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and the
Washington State Department of Transportation. The records shall be open to inspection by the State and Federal Government at all reasonable times
and shall be retained and made available for such inspection for a period of not less than three years from the final payment of any federal aid funds
to the Agency. Copies of said records shall be furnished to the State and/or Federal Government upon request.
V.  Compliance with Provisions

The Agency shall not incur any federal aid participation costs on any classification of work on this project until authorized in writing by the State
for each classification. The classifications of work for projects are:

1. Preliminary engineering.
2. Right of way acquisition.
3. Project construction.

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 89



DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 3

The State shall bill the Agency for all costs incurred by the State relative to the project. The State shall also bill the Agency for the federal funds
paid by the State to the Agency for project costs which are subsequently determined to be ineligible for federal participation (see Section IX).

Method A – The Agency will place with the State, within (20) days after the execution of the construction contract, an advance in the amount of
the Agency’s share of the total construction cost based on the contract award. The State will notify the Agency of the exact amount to be deposited
with the State. The State will pay all costs incurred under the contract upon presentation of progress billings from the contractor. Following such
payments, the State will submit a billing to the Federal Government for the federal aid participation share of the cost. When the project is
substantially completed and final actual costs of the project can be determined, the State will present the Agency with a final billing showing the
amount due the State or the amount due the Agency. This billing will be cleared by either a payment from the Agency to the State or by a refund
from the State to the Agency.

Method B – The Agency’s share of the total construction cost as shown on the face of this agreement shall be withheld from its monthly fuel tax
allotments. The face of this agreement establishes the months in which the withholding shall take place and the exact amount to be withheld each
month. The extent of withholding will be confirmed by letter from the State at the time of contract award. Upon receipt of progress billings from the
contractor, the State will submit such billings to the Federal Government for payment of its participating portion of such billings.

Method C – The Agency may submit vouchers to the State in the format prescribed by the State, in duplicate, not more than once per month for
those costs eligible for Federal participation to the extent that such costs are directly attributable and properly allocable to this project. Expenditures
by the Local Agency for maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other overhead shall not be eligible for Federal participation unless
claimed under a previously approved indirect cost plan.

The State shall reimburse the Agency for the Federal share of eligible project costs up to the amount shown on the face of this agreement. At the
time of audit, the Agency will provide documentation of all costs incurred on the project.

The Agency, if services of a consultant are required, shall be responsible for audit of the consultant’s records to determine eligible federal aid
costs on the project.  The report of said audit shall be in the Agency’s files and made available to the State and the Federal Government.

VII.  Audit of Federal Consultant Contracts

An audit shall be conducted by the WSDOT Internal Audit Office in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards as
issued by the United States General Accounting Office by the Comptroller General of the United States; WSDOT Manual M 27-50, Consultant
Authorization, Selection, and Agreement Administration; memoranda of understanding between WSDOT and FHWA; and Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133.

If upon audit it is found that overpayment or participation of federal money in ineligible items of cost has occurred, the Agency shall reimburse
the State for the amount of such overpayment or excess participation (see Section IX).

The Agency agrees that if payment or arrangement for payment of any of the State’s billing relative to the project (e.g., State force work, project
cancellation, overpayment, cost ineligible for federal participation, etc.) is not made to the State within 45 days after the Agency has been billed, the
State shall effect reimbursement of the total sum due from the regular monthly fuel tax allotments to the Agency from the Motor Vehicle Fund. No
additional Federal project funding will be approved until full payment is received unless otherwise directed by the Director of Local Programs.

IX.  Payment of Billing

The Agency, as a subrecipient of federal funds, shall adhere to the federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 as well as all
applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who expends $500,000 or more in federal awards from all sources during a
given fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit performed for that year in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133.
Upon conclusion of the A-133 audit, the Agency shall be responsible for ensuring that a copy of the report is transmitted promptly to the State.

VIII.  Single Audit Act

The Agency agrees that on federal aid highway construction projects, the current federal aid regulations which apply to liquidated damages
relative to the basis of federal participation in the project cost shall be applicable in the event the contractor fails to complete the contract within the
contract time.

The Agency agrees that all stages of construction necessary to provide the initially planned complete facility within the limits of this project will
conform to at least the minimum values set by approved statewide design standards applicable to this class of highways, even though such additional
work is financed without federal aid participation.

VI.  Payment and Partial Reimbursement
The total cost of the project, including all review and engineering costs and other expenses of the State, is to be paid by the Agency and by the

Federal Government. Federal funding shall be in accordance with the Federal Transportation Act, as amended, 2 CFR 225 and Office of
Management and Budget circulars A-102 and A-133. The State shall not be ultimately responsible for any of the costs of the project. The Agency
shall be ultimately responsible for all costs associated with the project which are not reimbursed by the Federal Government. Nothing in this
agreement shall be construed as a promise by the State as to the amount or nature of federal participation in this project.

The Agency shall bill the state for federal aid project costs incurred in conformity with applicable federal and state laws. The agency shall
minimize the time elapsed between receipt of federal aid funds and subsequent payment of incurred costs. Expenditures by the Local Agency for
maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other overhead shall not be eligible for federal participation unless a current indirect cost plan
has been prepared in accordance with the regulations outlined in 2 CFR 225 - Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government, and
retained for audit.

The State will pay for State incurred costs on the project. Following payment, the State shall bill the Federal Government for reimbursement of
those costs eligible for federal participation to the extent that such costs are attributable and properly allocable to this project. The State shall bill the
Agency for that portion of State costs which were not reimbursed by the Federal Government (see Section IX).

1.  Project Construction Costs
Project construction financing will be accomplished by one of the three methods as indicated in this agreement.

90



The Agency will not permit any changes to be made in the provisions for parking regulations and traffic control on this project without prior
approval of the State and Federal Highway Administration. The Agency will not install or permit to be installed any signs, signals, or markings not
in conformance with the standards approved by the Federal Highway Administration and MUTCD. The Agency will, at its own expense, maintain
the improvement covered by this agreement.

X.  Traffic Control, Signing, Marking, and Roadway Maintenance

The Agency shall hold the Federal Government and the State harmless from and shall process and defend at its own expense all claims, demands,
or suits, whether at law or equity brought against the Agency, State, or Federal Government, arising from the Agency’s execution, performance, or
failure to perform any of the provisions of this agreement, or of any other agreement or contract connected with this agreement, or arising by reason
of the participation of the State or Federal Government in the project, PROVIDED, nothing herein shall require the Agency to reimburse the State or
the Federal Government for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of
the Federal Government or the State.

XI.  Indemnity

No liability shall attach to the State or Federal Government except as expressly provided herein.

The Agency hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as
defined in the rules and regulations of the Secretary of Labor in 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from
the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee or
understanding pursuant to any federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the required contract provisions for
Federal-Aid Contracts (FHWA 1273), located in Chapter 44 of the Local Agency Guidelines.

XII.  Nondiscrimination Provision

The Agency further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it
participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the applicant so participating is a State or Local Government, the above equal
opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or
under the contract.

The Agency also agrees:
(1) To assist and cooperate actively with the State in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity

clause and rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(2) To furnish the State such information as it may require for the supervision of such compliance and that it will otherwise assist the State in
the discharge of its primary responsibility for securing compliance.

(3) To refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a
contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts
pursuant to the Executive Order.

(4) To carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and
subcontractors by the State, Federal Highway Administration, or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, subpart D of the Executive Order.

The Agency shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any USDOT-assisted
contract and/or agreement or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The Agency shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts and
agreements. The WSDOT’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this
agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement.
Upon notification to the Agency of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under Part 26
and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.
S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4

In addition, the Agency agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the State may take any or all of the following
actions:

(a)  Cancel, terminate, or suspend this agreement in whole or in part;
(b)  Refrain from extending any further assistance to the Agency under the program with respect to which the failure or refusal

occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from the Agency; and
(c)  Refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

The Agency hereby agrees that the liquidated damages provisions of 23 CFR Part 635, Subpart 127, as supplemented, relative to the amount of
Federal participation in the project cost, shall be applicable in the event the contractor fails to complete the contract within the contract time. Failure
to include liquidated damages provision will not relieve the Agency from reduction of federal participation in accordance with this paragraph.

XIII.  Liquidated Damages

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 91



The Secretary of the Washington State Department of Transportation may terminate the contract in whole, or from time to time in part,
whenever:

XIV.  Termination for Public Convenience

(1)  The requisite federal funding becomes unavailable through failure of appropriation or otherwise.
(2) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work as a direct result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the

prosecution of war or in the interest of national defense, or an Executive Order of the President or Governor of the State with respect to the
preservation of energy resources.

(3) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work by reason of a preliminary, special, or permanent restraining order of a
court of competent jurisdiction where the issuance of such order is primarily caused by the acts or omissions of persons or agencies other than
the contractor.

(4)    The Secretary is notified by the Federal Highway Administration that the project is inactive.

(5)  The Secretary determines that such termination is in the best interests of the State.

For the convenience of the parties to this contract, it is agreed that any claims and/or causes of action which the Local Agency has against the
State of Washington, growing out of this contract or the project with which it is concerned, shall be brought only in the Superior Court for Thurston
County.

XV.  Venue for Claims and/or Causes of Action

The approving authority certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

XVI.  Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the Standard Form - LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers
(including subgrants, and contracts and subcontracts under grants, subgrants, loans, and cooperative agreements) which exceed $100,000, and that all
such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission
of this certification as a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Additional Provisions

5DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 92



Local Agency Federal Aid
Project Prospectus

Local Local Forces State Railroad

FHWA Others

City of Oak Harbor 20.205 Other

Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project

Oak Harbor Marina SW Scenic Heights St.

2.09 mi

0895 15 Island Northwest Region

Congressional District 2 Legislative District 10 19

$30,000 $30,000 Nov. 2014

$120,000 $120,000
$150,000 $150,000

Aug. 2015

Trail width: 8 ft na
The Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail is a pedestrian facility that spans the entire water front of the city. Most of the trail is paved
with asphalt or concrete cement pavement. The trail at the project site is cement concrete eight feet wide. The existing trail at the
project site was undermined by a land slide in 2013 and has been closed since. The trail on either side of the slide is in good
condition.

Mayor, City of Oak Harbor

John Piccone Project Engineer 360 279-4778

865 SE Barrington Drive Oak Harbor 98277-3280

Agency Federal Program Title

Project Title

Project Termini From - To Nearest City Name

From To Length of Project Award Type

Federal Agency City Number County Number County Name WSDOT Region

Congressional District Legislative Districts Urban Area Number

Phase
Total

Estimated Cost
Local Agency

Funding
(Nearest Hundred Dollar)

Federal Funds Phase Start
Date

Month               Year

P.E.

R/W

Const.

Total

(Nearest Hundred Dollar) (Nearest Hundred Dollar)

Page 1 of 3

Description of Existing Facility (Existing Design and Present Condition)
Roadway Width Number of Lanes

Project Prospectus Approval
By

Title Date

Approving Authority

Local Agency Contact Person Title

Mailing Address

Phone

City Zip Code
WA

State

Federal Aid
Project Number

Prefix Route (             )

ENG 13-04
Local Agency
Project Number

7/17/2014Date

Federal Employer
Tax ID Number 91-6001476

WSDOT
Use Only

N48-17’-20.39”Start Latitude

End Latitude N
W122-38-08.04
W

Start Longitude

End Longitude

Description of Proposed Work

Repair of damaged section of existing trail, construction of new sidewalk, installation of landscaping and view point amenities,
providing way-finding, historic and environmental information.

Description of Proposed Work (Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary)

054009196DUNS Number

Project Zip Code (+ 4)
Oak Harbor 98277-3280

Previous Editions ObsoleteDOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014

CA Agency
Yes No

93



Environmental Classification

7/17/2014City of Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project

Principal Arterial
Minor Arterial
Collector
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Local Access

Principal Arterial
Minor Arterial
Collector
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Local Access

Flat Roll Mountain Flat Roll Mountain
na
na
na
na
na
na

na
na
na
na
na
na

Consultant

General Contractor

100

100

DateAgency Project Title

Geometric Design Data
Description Through Route Crossroad

Federal
Functional

Classification

Terrain
Posted Speed
Design Speed
Existing ADT
Design Year ADT
Design Year
Design Hourly Volume (DHV)

Page 2 of 3

Performance of Work
Preliminary Engineering Will Be Performed By

Construction Will Be Performed By

Others

Contract

Agency

Agency
%

%

%

%

Environmental Considerations
This project is classified as Categorically Excluded as described in parts 3, 22 and 23 of Section 24.22 a. of the WSDOT Local
Agency Guidelines.

Urban Urban
Rural Rural

Class I - Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Class II - Categorically Excluded (CE)

Class III - Environmental Assessment (EA)

Projects Requiring Documentation
(Documented CE)

Project Involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404
Interagency Agreement

Project Involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404
Interagency Agreement

New Construction 8 ft 1

Type of Proposed Work
Roadway Width Number of Lanes

3-R

Project Type (Check all that Apply)

2-RReconstruction
Railroad
Bridge

Path / Trail
Pedestrian / Facilities
Parking Other

NHS NHS

DOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014 94



Right of Way

7/17/2014City of Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project

Utility Relocation are not anticipated and existing major structures are not involved.

Naval Air Station Whidbey Island is located 2 miles north of the project site.

Yes No

August 6, 2014

City of Oak Harbor

DateAgency Project Title

Page 3 of 3

Description of Utility Relocation or Adjustments and Existing Major Structures Involved in the Project

Remarks

FAA Involvement
Is any airport located within 3.2 kilometers (2 miles) of the proposed project?

This project has been reviewed by the legislative body of the administration agency or agencies, or it’s designee, and
is not inconsistent with the agency’s comprehensive plan for community development.

Agency

Date By
Mayor/Chairperson

No Right of Way Required Right of Way Required
Relocation Required* All construction required by the

contract can be accomplished
within the existing right of way.

No Relocation

DOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014 Previous Editions Obsolete

95



96



97



RESOLUTION NO. 14-31 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING 
AND AGREEING TO COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS, POLICIES 

AND PROCEDURES INCLUDED IN THE LOCAL AGENCY 
AGREEMENT FOR FEDERAL FUNDING OF THE DESIGN PHASE OF 

THE WHIDBEY AVENUE PEDESTRIAN CROSSING PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, chronic pedestrian jay-walking occurs on East Whidbey Avenue between 
Oak Harbor Street and SR-20 which causes a traffic safety hazard to the pedestrians 
and drivers using the street. 
 
WHEREAS, the land uses, residential and commercial, on opposite sides of East 
Whidbey Avenue between Oak Harbor Street and SR-20 creates a significant 
pedestrian travel demand for crossing East Whidbey Avenue. 

 
WHEREAS, the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing project was developed to 
provide a safe, efficient pedestrian route across E. Whidbey Avenue. 
 
WHEREAS, a Transportation Alternative Program federal grant funding 
application for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing Project was submitted 
to the Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization. 
 
WHEREAS, the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing project was evaluated 
and selected by the Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Planning Organization 
for funding by the federal Transportation Alternative Program. 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation administers 
federal Transportation Alternative Program funds allocated to the State of 
Washington. 
 
WHEREAS, a Local Agency Agreement with the Washington State Department 
of Transportation completed on the prescribed form is required before federal 
funds can be used to reimburse Oak Harbor for the costs of designing the 
project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as 
follows: The City of Oak Harbor hereby agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 
set forth in the Local Agency Agreement for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing 
Project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-31    Page 1 of 2 
 

98



 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 6th day of August, 2014. 
        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
__________________________ 

      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
Attest:      Approved as to form: 
 

 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-31    Page 2 of 2 
 

99



Local Agency Agreement

Agency Official Washington State Department of Transportation

By

Title

Date Executed

By

Director of Local Programs

Agency

Address
City of Oak Harbor
865 S.E. Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA
98277

The Local Agency having complied, or hereby agreeing to comply, with the terms and conditions set forth in (1) Title 23, U.S. Code Highways, (2)
the regulations issued pursuant thereto, (3) 2 CFR 225, (4) Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-102, and A-133, (5) the policies and
procedures promulgated by the Washington State Department of Transportation, and (6) the federal aid project agreement entered into between the
State and Federal Government, relative to the above project, the Washington State Department of Transportation will authorize the Local Agency to
proceed on the project by a separate notification. Federal funds which are to be obligated for the project may not exceed the amount shown herein on
line r, column 3, without written authority by the State, subject to the approval of the Federal Highway Administration. All project costs not
reimbursed by the Federal Government shall be the responsibility of the Local Agency.

Project Description

Description of Work

Name Length

Termini

Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing 0.04 mi

E. Whidbey Ave.

Type of Work
Estimate of Funding

(1) (2) (3)

PE

Right of Way

Construction

a. Agency
b. Other

d. State
e. Total PE Cost Estimate (a+b+c+d)

22,000.00

1,000.00
23,000.00

f. Agency
g. Other

i. State
j. Total R/W Cost Estimate (f+g+h+i)
k. Contract
l. Other
m. Other

o. Agency
p. State
q. Total CN Cost Estimate (k+l+m+n+o+p)
r. Total Project Cost Estimate (e+j+q) 23,000.00

22,000.00

1,000.00
23,000.00

Federal Funds
Estimated

Funds
Estimated Agency

Project Funds
Estimated Total

1

Mid-block pedestrian crossing, center refuge island, pedestrian-activated warning system, ADA retrofit, sidewalk

23,000.00

For OSC WSDOT Use Only

Project No.

Agreement No.

CFDA No.  20.205

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for PE

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for RW

Federal Aid
Participation
Ratio for CN

100 %

%

%

(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance)

Mayor, City of Oak Harbor

h. Other

c. Other

n. Other

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014

Proposed Advertisement Date:

100



Once written authorization is given, the Agency agrees to show continuous progress through monthly billings. Failure to show continuous progress
may result the Agency’s project becoming inactive, as described in 23 CFR 630, and subject to de-obligation of federal aid funds and/or agreement
closure.

If right of way acquisition, or actual construction of the road for which preliminary engineering is undertaken is not started by the close of the
tenth fiscal year following the fiscal year in which preliminary engineering phase was authorized, the Agency will repay to the State the sum or sums
of federal funds paid to the Agency under the terms of this agreement (see Section IX).

If actual construction of the road for which right of way has been purchased is not started by the close of the tenth fiscal year following the fiscal
year in which the right of way phase was authorized, the Agency will repay to the State the sum or sums of federal funds paid to the Agency under
the terms of this agreement (see Section IX).

Construction Method of Financing (Check Method Selected)

State Ad and Award

Method A - Advance Payment - Agency Share of total construction cost (based on contract award)

Method B - Withhold from gas tax the Agency's share of total construction cost (line 4, column 2) in the amount of
$ at $ per month for months.

Local Force or Local Ad and Award

Method C - Agency cost incurred with partial reimbursement
The Local Agency further stipulates that pursuant to said Title 23, regulations and policies and procedures, and as
a condition to payment of the federal funds obligated, it accepts and will comply with the applicable provisions set
forth below. Adopted by official action on

, , Resolution/Ordinance No.

2

Provisions

Certain types of work and services shall be provided by the State on this project as requested by the Agency and described in the Type of Work
above. In addition, the State will furnish qualified personnel for the supervision and inspection of the work in progress. On Local Agency advertised
and awarded projects, the supervision and inspection shall be limited to ensuring all work is in conformance with approved plans, specifications, and
federal aid requirements. The salary of such engineer or other supervisor and all other salaries and costs incurred by State forces upon the project
will be considered a cost thereof. All costs related to this project incurred by employees of the State in the customary manner on highway payrolls
and vouchers shall be charged as costs of the project.

I.  Scope of Work
The Agency shall provide all the work, labor, materials, and services necessary to perform the project which is described and set forth in detail in

the “Project Description” and “Type of Work.”
When the State acts for and on behalf of the Agency, the State shall be deemed an agent of the Agency and shall perform the services described

and indicated in “Type of Work” on the face of this agreement, in accordance with plans and specifications as proposed by the Agency and approved
by the State and the Federal Highway Administration.

When the State acts for the Agency but is not subject to the right of control by the Agency, the State shall have the right to perform the work
subject to the ordinary procedures of the State and Federal Highway Administration.

II.  Delegation of Authority
The State is willing to fulfill the responsibilities to the Federal Government by the administration of this project. The Agency agrees that the State

shall have the full authority to carry out this administration. The State shall review, process, and approve documents required for federal aid
reimbursement in accordance with federal requirements. If the State advertises and awards the contract, the State will further act for the Agency in
all matters concerning the project as requested by the Agency. If the Local Agency advertises and awards the project, the State shall review the work
to ensure conformity with the approved plans and specifications.

III.  Project Administration

IV.  Availability of Records
All project records in support of all costs incurred and actual expenditures kept by the Agency are to be maintained in accordance with local

government accounting procedures prescribed by the Washington State Auditor’s Office, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and the
Washington State Department of Transportation. The records shall be open to inspection by the State and Federal Government at all reasonable times
and shall be retained and made available for such inspection for a period of not less than three years from the final payment of any federal aid funds
to the Agency. Copies of said records shall be furnished to the State and/or Federal Government upon request.
V.  Compliance with Provisions

The Agency shall not incur any federal aid participation costs on any classification of work on this project until authorized in writing by the State
for each classification. The classifications of work for projects are:

1. Preliminary engineering.
2. Right of way acquisition.
3. Project construction.

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 101



DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 3

The State shall bill the Agency for all costs incurred by the State relative to the project. The State shall also bill the Agency for the federal funds
paid by the State to the Agency for project costs which are subsequently determined to be ineligible for federal participation (see Section IX).

Method A – The Agency will place with the State, within (20) days after the execution of the construction contract, an advance in the amount of
the Agency’s share of the total construction cost based on the contract award. The State will notify the Agency of the exact amount to be deposited
with the State. The State will pay all costs incurred under the contract upon presentation of progress billings from the contractor. Following such
payments, the State will submit a billing to the Federal Government for the federal aid participation share of the cost. When the project is
substantially completed and final actual costs of the project can be determined, the State will present the Agency with a final billing showing the
amount due the State or the amount due the Agency. This billing will be cleared by either a payment from the Agency to the State or by a refund
from the State to the Agency.

Method B – The Agency’s share of the total construction cost as shown on the face of this agreement shall be withheld from its monthly fuel tax
allotments. The face of this agreement establishes the months in which the withholding shall take place and the exact amount to be withheld each
month. The extent of withholding will be confirmed by letter from the State at the time of contract award. Upon receipt of progress billings from the
contractor, the State will submit such billings to the Federal Government for payment of its participating portion of such billings.

Method C – The Agency may submit vouchers to the State in the format prescribed by the State, in duplicate, not more than once per month for
those costs eligible for Federal participation to the extent that such costs are directly attributable and properly allocable to this project. Expenditures
by the Local Agency for maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other overhead shall not be eligible for Federal participation unless
claimed under a previously approved indirect cost plan.

The State shall reimburse the Agency for the Federal share of eligible project costs up to the amount shown on the face of this agreement. At the
time of audit, the Agency will provide documentation of all costs incurred on the project.

The Agency, if services of a consultant are required, shall be responsible for audit of the consultant’s records to determine eligible federal aid
costs on the project.  The report of said audit shall be in the Agency’s files and made available to the State and the Federal Government.

VII.  Audit of Federal Consultant Contracts

An audit shall be conducted by the WSDOT Internal Audit Office in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards as
issued by the United States General Accounting Office by the Comptroller General of the United States; WSDOT Manual M 27-50, Consultant
Authorization, Selection, and Agreement Administration; memoranda of understanding between WSDOT and FHWA; and Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133.

If upon audit it is found that overpayment or participation of federal money in ineligible items of cost has occurred, the Agency shall reimburse
the State for the amount of such overpayment or excess participation (see Section IX).

The Agency agrees that if payment or arrangement for payment of any of the State’s billing relative to the project (e.g., State force work, project
cancellation, overpayment, cost ineligible for federal participation, etc.) is not made to the State within 45 days after the Agency has been billed, the
State shall effect reimbursement of the total sum due from the regular monthly fuel tax allotments to the Agency from the Motor Vehicle Fund. No
additional Federal project funding will be approved until full payment is received unless otherwise directed by the Director of Local Programs.

IX.  Payment of Billing

The Agency, as a subrecipient of federal funds, shall adhere to the federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 as well as all
applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who expends $500,000 or more in federal awards from all sources during a
given fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit performed for that year in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133.
Upon conclusion of the A-133 audit, the Agency shall be responsible for ensuring that a copy of the report is transmitted promptly to the State.

VIII.  Single Audit Act

The Agency agrees that on federal aid highway construction projects, the current federal aid regulations which apply to liquidated damages
relative to the basis of federal participation in the project cost shall be applicable in the event the contractor fails to complete the contract within the
contract time.

The Agency agrees that all stages of construction necessary to provide the initially planned complete facility within the limits of this project will
conform to at least the minimum values set by approved statewide design standards applicable to this class of highways, even though such additional
work is financed without federal aid participation.

VI.  Payment and Partial Reimbursement
The total cost of the project, including all review and engineering costs and other expenses of the State, is to be paid by the Agency and by the

Federal Government. Federal funding shall be in accordance with the Federal Transportation Act, as amended, 2 CFR 225 and Office of
Management and Budget circulars A-102 and A-133. The State shall not be ultimately responsible for any of the costs of the project. The Agency
shall be ultimately responsible for all costs associated with the project which are not reimbursed by the Federal Government. Nothing in this
agreement shall be construed as a promise by the State as to the amount or nature of federal participation in this project.

The Agency shall bill the state for federal aid project costs incurred in conformity with applicable federal and state laws. The agency shall
minimize the time elapsed between receipt of federal aid funds and subsequent payment of incurred costs. Expenditures by the Local Agency for
maintenance, general administration, supervision, and other overhead shall not be eligible for federal participation unless a current indirect cost plan
has been prepared in accordance with the regulations outlined in 2 CFR 225 - Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government, and
retained for audit.

The State will pay for State incurred costs on the project. Following payment, the State shall bill the Federal Government for reimbursement of
those costs eligible for federal participation to the extent that such costs are attributable and properly allocable to this project. The State shall bill the
Agency for that portion of State costs which were not reimbursed by the Federal Government (see Section IX).

1.  Project Construction Costs
Project construction financing will be accomplished by one of the three methods as indicated in this agreement.

102



The Agency will not permit any changes to be made in the provisions for parking regulations and traffic control on this project without prior
approval of the State and Federal Highway Administration. The Agency will not install or permit to be installed any signs, signals, or markings not
in conformance with the standards approved by the Federal Highway Administration and MUTCD. The Agency will, at its own expense, maintain
the improvement covered by this agreement.

X.  Traffic Control, Signing, Marking, and Roadway Maintenance

The Agency shall hold the Federal Government and the State harmless from and shall process and defend at its own expense all claims, demands,
or suits, whether at law or equity brought against the Agency, State, or Federal Government, arising from the Agency’s execution, performance, or
failure to perform any of the provisions of this agreement, or of any other agreement or contract connected with this agreement, or arising by reason
of the participation of the State or Federal Government in the project, PROVIDED, nothing herein shall require the Agency to reimburse the State or
the Federal Government for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of
the Federal Government or the State.

XI.  Indemnity

No liability shall attach to the State or Federal Government except as expressly provided herein.

The Agency hereby agrees that it will incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as
defined in the rules and regulations of the Secretary of Labor in 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from
the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee or
understanding pursuant to any federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the required contract provisions for
Federal-Aid Contracts (FHWA 1273), located in Chapter 44 of the Local Agency Guidelines.

XII.  Nondiscrimination Provision

The Agency further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it
participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the applicant so participating is a State or Local Government, the above equal
opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or
under the contract.

The Agency also agrees:
(1) To assist and cooperate actively with the State in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity

clause and rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(2) To furnish the State such information as it may require for the supervision of such compliance and that it will otherwise assist the State in
the discharge of its primary responsibility for securing compliance.

(3) To refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a
contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts
pursuant to the Executive Order.

(4) To carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and
subcontractors by the State, Federal Highway Administration, or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, subpart D of the Executive Order.

The Agency shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any USDOT-assisted
contract and/or agreement or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The Agency shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts and
agreements. The WSDOT’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this
agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement.
Upon notification to the Agency of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under Part 26
and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.
S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4

In addition, the Agency agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the State may take any or all of the following
actions:

(a)  Cancel, terminate, or suspend this agreement in whole or in part;
(b)  Refrain from extending any further assistance to the Agency under the program with respect to which the failure or refusal

occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from the Agency; and
(c)  Refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

The Agency hereby agrees that the liquidated damages provisions of 23 CFR Part 635, Subpart 127, as supplemented, relative to the amount of
Federal participation in the project cost, shall be applicable in the event the contractor fails to complete the contract within the contract time. Failure
to include liquidated damages provision will not relieve the Agency from reduction of federal participation in accordance with this paragraph.

XIII.  Liquidated Damages

DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 103



The Secretary of the Washington State Department of Transportation may terminate the contract in whole, or from time to time in part,
whenever:

XIV.  Termination for Public Convenience

(1)  The requisite federal funding becomes unavailable through failure of appropriation or otherwise.
(2) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work as a direct result of an Executive Order of the President with respect to the

prosecution of war or in the interest of national defense, or an Executive Order of the President or Governor of the State with respect to the
preservation of energy resources.

(3) The contractor is prevented from proceeding with the work by reason of a preliminary, special, or permanent restraining order of a
court of competent jurisdiction where the issuance of such order is primarily caused by the acts or omissions of persons or agencies other than
the contractor.

(4)    The Secretary is notified by the Federal Highway Administration that the project is inactive.

(5)  The Secretary determines that such termination is in the best interests of the State.

For the convenience of the parties to this contract, it is agreed that any claims and/or causes of action which the Local Agency has against the
State of Washington, growing out of this contract or the project with which it is concerned, shall be brought only in the Superior Court for Thurston
County.

XV.  Venue for Claims and/or Causes of Action

The approving authority certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

XVI.  Certification Regarding the Restrictions of the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit the Standard Form - LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers
(including subgrants, and contracts and subcontracts under grants, subgrants, loans, and cooperative agreements) which exceed $100,000, and that all
such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission
of this certification as a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Additional Provisions

5DOT Form 140-039 EF
Revised 03/2014 104



Local Agency Federal Aid
Project Prospectus

Local Local Forces State Railroad

FHWA Others

City of Oak Hrbor 20.205 Other

Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

E. Whidbey Avenue

approx. 100 ft

0895 15 Island Northwest Region

Congressional District 2 Legislative District 10 19

$23,000 $23,000 Nov. 2014

$201,500 $201,500
$224,500 $224,500

Aug. 2015

75 feet 5
Whidbey Avenue is the primary east-west street in Oak Harbor. The functional classification of Whidbey Avenue is Minor
Arterial. The existing street section includes sidewalk on both sides, two lanes in either direction and a center two-way left turn
lane. The condition of Whidbey Avenue at the project site is fair. The existing asphalt concrete pavement has some cracking but
remains in sufficiently good condition to be rehabilitated with an overlay.

Mayor, City of Oak Harbor Aug 6, 2014

Arnold Peterschmidt Project Engineer 360 279-4525

865 SE Barrington Drive Oak Harbor 98277-3280

Agency Federal Program Title

Project Title

Project Termini From - To Nearest City Name

From To Length of Project Award Type

Federal Agency City Number County Number County Name WSDOT Region

Congressional District Legislative Districts Urban Area Number

Phase
Total

Estimated Cost
Local Agency

Funding
(Nearest Hundred Dollar)

Federal Funds Phase Start
Date

Month               Year

P.E.

R/W

Const.

Total

(Nearest Hundred Dollar) (Nearest Hundred Dollar)

Page 1 of 3

Description of Existing Facility (Existing Design and Present Condition)
Roadway Width Number of Lanes

Project Prospectus Approval
By

Title Date

Approving Authority

Local Agency Contact Person Title

Mailing Address

Phone

City Zip Code
WA

State

Federal Aid
Project Number

Prefix Route (             )

ENG 14-02
Local Agency
Project Number

7/17/2014Date

Federal Employer
Tax ID Number 91-6001476

WSDOT
Use Only

N48-17-54.56Start Latitude

End Latitude N
W122-39-19.98
W

Start Longitude

End Longitude

Description of Proposed Work

The proposed work is installation of a mid-block pedestrian crossing, center refuge island, pedestrian-activated warning system,
ADA retrofit and sidewalk.

Description of Proposed Work (Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary)

054009196DUNS Number

Project Zip Code (+ 4)
Oak Harbor 98277-3280

Previous Editions ObsoleteDOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014

CA Agency
Yes No

105



Environmental Classification

7/17/2014City of Oak Hrbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

Principal Arterial
Minor Arterial
Collector
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Local Access

Principal Arterial
Minor Arterial
Collector
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Local Access

Flat Roll Mountain Flat Roll Mountain
na
na
na
na
na
na

na
na
na
na
na
na

Consultant

General Contractor

100

100

DateAgency Project Title

Geometric Design Data
Description Through Route Crossroad

Federal
Functional

Classification

Terrain
Posted Speed
Design Speed
Existing ADT
Design Year ADT
Design Year
Design Hourly Volume (DHV)

Page 2 of 3

Performance of Work
Preliminary Engineering Will Be Performed By

Construction Will Be Performed By

Others

Contract

Agency

Agency
%

%

%

%

Environmental Considerations
This project is Categorically Excluded as described in parts 3, 22, and 23 of Section 24.22 a. of the WSDOT Local Agency
Guidelines.

Urban Urban
Rural Rural

Class I - Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Class II - Categorically Excluded (CE)

Class III - Environmental Assessment (EA)

Projects Requiring Documentation
(Documented CE)

Project Involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404
Interagency Agreement

Project Involves NEPA/SEPA Section 404
Interagency Agreement

New Construction 75 feet 5

Type of Proposed Work
Roadway Width Number of Lanes

3-R

Project Type (Check all that Apply)

2-RReconstruction
Railroad
Bridge

Path / Trail
Pedestrian / Facilities
Parking Other

NHS NHS

DOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014 106



Right of Way

7/17/2014City of Oak Hrbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

Relocation of or adjustments to utilities and existing major structures are not expected.

Whidbey Island Naval Airstation is 2 miles north of the project site.

Yes No

August 6, 2014

City of Oak Harbor

DateAgency Project Title

Page 3 of 3

Description of Utility Relocation or Adjustments and Existing Major Structures Involved in the Project

Remarks

FAA Involvement
Is any airport located within 3.2 kilometers (2 miles) of the proposed project?

This project has been reviewed by the legislative body of the administration agency or agencies, or it’s designee, and
is not inconsistent with the agency’s comprehensive plan for community development.

Agency

Date By
Mayor/Chairperson

No Right of Way Required Right of Way Required
Relocation Required* All construction required by the

contract can be accomplished
within the existing right of way.

No Relocation

DOT Form 140-101 EF
Revised 04/2014 Previous Editions Obsolete

107



108



109



RESOLUTION NO. 14-32 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING THE 
LABOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR (EMPLOYER) AND 
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 231 – PUBLIC WORKS UNIT (UNION) TO ADD THE JUNE 2014 -
WAGE AND BENEFIT MEMORANDA OF SETTLEMENT.   
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor and Teamsters labor agreement was last updated on 
August 1, 2013, which covers August 1, 2013 – December 31, 2016, with a Wage and Medical 
opener provided in the Appendix B.II.a and B.II.b; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Oak Harbor and Teamsters Union, Local 231, have engaged in 
mediation and reviewed market studies of bargaining unit positions, and  
 
WHEREAS, on July 8, 2014, and pursuant to a  Public Relations Commission (PERC) 
Mediator’s suggested resolution, have settled the issues of wage adjustments and the 
termination of the medical “opt out program” money for impacted employees in the bargaining 
unit. 
 
NOWTHEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak 
Harbor that:  
 
Section1.The labor agreement between The City of Oak Harbor (Employer) and; Teamsters 
Local 231 – Public Works Unit (Union), commencing August 1, 2013, shall be amended to 
include the Memoranda of Settlement – June 2014 to resolve the Wage and Medical opener.   
 

Section2.This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 
 
 
PASSED and approved by the City Council this day of, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
        

_______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza. City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  

110



 

MEMORANDA OF SETTLEMENT – June 2014 

By and Between 

The City of Oak Harbor (Employer), and: 

Teamsters Local 231 – Public Works Unit (Union) 

 

A The parties are signatory to a labor agreement which provides at Appendix B.II.a and B.II.b for a “Wage and 

Medical” opener, and; 

B The parties have reviewed various forms of market studies of bargaining unit positions, and;  

C The Parties have met in Mediation which, pursuant to a Mediator’s suggested resolution, has resolved the issues 

of the wage opener, and; 

 

THEREFORE, it is agreed: 

 

1. Market adjustments are to be effective through the adoption of replacement Appendix A as of the first full pay 

period of January 2014.  Additional market adjustments, if any, shall be made as of the first full pay period of 

2015 and 2016 as set out in the attached Replacement Appendix A. 

2. Effective as of the first full pay period in January 2014, the wage table attached as replacement Appendix B  

shall become effective for 2014.  For 2015 and 2016 the replacement Appendix B table will be effective as of 

the first full pay period each January. 

3. Effective January 1, 2015 the provisions of Section 9.03.1 are satisfied with the open enrollment afforded to 

bargaining unit employees offering the same choices as the City provides to unrepresented staff pursuant to 

Resolution 13-24.  Such choices shall be made available to bargaining unit employees during the City’s normal 

open enrollment period in 2014 for 2015 participation and in 2015 for participation in 2016. 

3.1. Employees who were receiving “opt out money” during 2013 and during 2014 prior to the date of this 

settlement shall be covered by City Medical in 2014 to the extent of their coverage in 2013 if any. 

3.2. Further, for bargaining unit employees paid “opt out money” in 2013 and in 2014 and who did not enroll 

in any City medical plan such employees will be eligible for medical enrolment as provided in 3, above for 

2015. 

4. It is agreed that all “opt out money” ended as of January 1, 2014. 

4.1. Employees receiving money considered to be “opt out money” shall as of January 1, 2014, be covered by 

City Resolution 13-27 whereby their “opt out money” payments will be included in their individual wage 

rate (red circle rate)  until such time as the wage rate in Appendix B for their classification shall exceed 

their individual wage rate.  Administration of this provision shall be consistent with Resolution 13-27. 

4.2. All “opt out money” received by any employee after January 1, 2014 shall be constructive wages and such 

amounts are paid as “red circle” wages pursuant to Resolution 13-27 

 

 

THE FOREGOING BEING THE AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BY:          BY:       

 Mayor, City of Oak Harbor    Secretary/Treasurer, Teamsters 231 

 

 

  

111



APPENDIX A CLASSIFICATIONS 

The City and the Union reserve the right to correct classification references as certified by the 

PERC; and, the references to appropriate Divisions within Public Works. 

 

  2013/ 2014 Market Ranges 

Construction Inspector  Eng N-41 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

Equipment Mechanic ER&R N-40 Up 1 range in 2014 

WWTP Laboratory Technician WWT N-40  

Engineer Technician  Eng N-38 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

Solid  Waste Spec II SW N-37 Up 1 range in 2014 

Storm Drain/ WW Collections Spec II  WW N-37 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

Streets Spec II Str N-37 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

Water Spec II   Wat N-37 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

WWTP Operator II  (new SS04) WWT N-37 Up 1 range in 2014 

Adm Asst - Eng  Eng N-36  

    

    

Parks Maintenance II (new SS04) Pks N-36 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 

Facilities & Utilities Worker Fac N-35 Up 1 range in 2014 and  2015 and  2016 

WWTP Operator I  WWT N-35  

Parks Maint Spec I (new SS04) Pks N-32  

Solid  Waste Spec I (new SS04) SW N-32  

Storm Drain/ WW Collections Spec I WW N-32  

Streets Specialist I Str N-32  

Water Specialist I Wat N-32  

WWTP Operator-In-Training WWT N-32  

   

City Divisions are: 

Engineering 

Equipment Rental & Repair 

Facilities 

Parks 

Solid Waste 

Streets 

Waste Water (Storm-water) 

Waste Water Treatment (Plant) 

Water (Potable) 

 

 

 

  

112



Salary Proficiency Level 2014 2.0%

Range A B C D E F G H

T20 $18.74 $19.30 $19.88 $20.47 $21.08 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04

T21 $19.30 $19.88 $20.47 $21.08 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73

T22 $19.88 $20.47 $21.08 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44

T23 $20.47 $21.08 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17

T24 $21.08 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93

T25 $21.72 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70

T26 $22.37 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70 $27.51

T27 $23.04 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70 $27.51 $28.33

T28 $23.73 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70 $27.51 $28.33 $29.17

T29 $24.44 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70 $27.51 $28.33 $29.17 $30.05

T30 $25.17 $25.93 $26.70 $27.51 $28.33 $29.17 $30.05 $30.95

Salary Proficiency Level 2015 2.0%

Range A B C D E F G H

T20 $19.11 $19.68 $20.28 $20.88 $21.51 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50

T21 $19.68 $20.28 $20.88 $21.51 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20

T22 $20.28 $20.88 $21.51 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93

T23 $20.88 $21.51 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68

T24 $21.51 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45

T25 $22.15 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24

T26 $22.82 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06

T27 $23.50 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06 $28.89

T28 $24.20 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06 $28.89 $29.76

T29 $24.93 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06 $28.89 $29.76 $30.65

T30 $25.68 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06 $28.89 $29.76 $30.65 $31.57

T31 $26.45 $27.24 $28.06 $28.89 $29.76 $30.65 $31.57 $32.52

Salary Proficiency Level 2016 2.5%

Range A B C D E F G H

T20 $19.59 $20.18 $20.78 $21.40 $22.04 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09

T21 $20.18 $20.78 $21.40 $22.04 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80

T22 $20.78 $21.40 $22.04 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55

T23 $21.40 $22.04 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32

T24 $22.04 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11

T25 $22.70 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92

T26 $23.39 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76

T27 $24.09 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76 $29.61

T28 $24.80 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76 $29.61 $30.50

T29 $25.55 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76 $29.61 $30.50 $31.42

T30 $26.32 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76 $29.61 $30.50 $31.42 $32.36

T31 $27.11 $27.92 $28.76 $29.61 $30.50 $31.42 $32.36 $33.33

APPENDIX B WAGES 

 

Wage Tables: 
Effective the 1st full pay period of the named year 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

113



 

Exhibit D 
 

Please click here 
http://www.oakharbor.org/page.cfm?pageId=1497  to view 
the Labor Agreement between The City of Oak Harbor and 
Teamsters Union, Local No. 231. 

114

http://www.oakharbor.org/page.cfm?pageId=1497


115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



 

ATTACHMENT 5 

 

See pages 8-11 of Agenda Bill 7.a 

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



ORDINANCE NO.  1693 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 6.12.080 TO ALLOW THE SALE OF BEER, WINE, 
AND/OR LIQUOR IN CONJUNCTION WITH A CONCESSION AGREEMENT 
AND/OR SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT AT FORT NUGENT PARK 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 
 
Section One.  Section 6.12.080 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Ordinance 
1669 § 4, 2013, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

6.12.080 Sale of beer, wine and/or liquor in city parks. 
Except as allowed by this section, there shall be no sale, use or consumption of beer, wine and/or 
liquor in any city park. The sale, use and consumption of beer, wine and/or liquor may be 
allowed in certain city parks under a concession agreement or special event permit subject to the 
following conditions: 

(1) The sale of beer, wine and/or liquor may be allowed only in Catalina, Fort Nugent and/or 
Windjammer parks for certain specific events upon application to and approval by the 
city. Applications for concession agreements, or special event permits under this chapter 
shall be decided by the city council.  

(2) The sale of beer, wine and/or liquor shall be subject to the conditions of the concession 
agreement and/or special event permit. 

The city council or city administrator/designee shall have the right to impose other and additional 
conditions related to the sale or consumption of beer, wine and/or liquor in the approval of a 
special event permit, or concession agreement as it/he deems necessary to protect the health, 
safety and welfare of the public.  

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance #1693 – Page 1 of 2 
 
 

141



Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2014. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
Adopted:    
Published:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2014\Park Code - Sale of Alcohol in City Parks 6.12.080.doc 

Ordinance #1693 – Page 2 of 2 
 
 

142



143



144



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into in duplicate this ____ day of August, 2014, by 
and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as the "CITY" and OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE #2362, 155 NE Ernst Street, Oak 
Harbor, WA  98277, referred to as the "SERVICE PROVIDER". 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have certain services and/or tasks performed as set forth below 
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and 
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities, including technical and professional 
expertise, where required, to perform the services and/or tasks set forth in this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services. 
 

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks, 
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance 
thereof, as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER Scope of Work 
responsibilities throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit "A" attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as 2015 and 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Race Director 
Scope of Work. 
 

2. Term. 
 

The Project shall begin on August 7, 2014 and shall be completed no later than May 14, 
2016, unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein. No later than April 30 
of each year beginning in 2015, the SERVICE PROVIDER may request and the CITY 
may approve a one-year extension to this Agreement. 
 

3. Compensation and Method of Payment. 
 

3.1 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the 
performance of such services, unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in 
writing by the CITY. 

 
3.2 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER 

except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement. 
 
3.3 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this 

Agreement beginning August 7, 2014 through and including May 14, 2016. The 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 1 
145



total amount paid under this Agreement will not exceed $30,000.00 per race year 
except as provided for in Section 3.4.  Payment under this Agreement for serving 
as Race Director for the 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon race year will be as 
follows: CITY will pay SERVICE PROVIDER one payment of $9,000.00 on or 
before August 29, 2014; and (2) CITY will pay SERVICE PROVIDER $3,000.00 
monthly on or before the last day of each month beginning in September, 2014 
and ending in March, 2015.  Payment under this Agreement for serving as Race 
Director for the 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon race year will be as follows:  
CITY will pay SERVICE PROVIDER $3,000.00 monthly on or before the last 
day of each month beginning in June, 2015 and ending in March, 2016. 

 
3.4 As an incentive for the SERVICE PROVIDER to work towards increasing 

sponsorship participation in the Whidbey Island Marathon, the CITY shall pay an 
incentive bonus of 20% of the total revenue generated each year through cash 
sponsorships. Further, the City shall pay an incentive bonus of 10% of the market 
value of product donations to the Whidbey Island Marathon. CITY shall pay any 
incentive bonuses earned concurrent with the March payment dates noted in 
Section 3.3. 

 
3.5 The scope of services as shown on, as shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto, may 

require the SERVICE PROVIDER to travel to and attend expositions or other 
events for marketing or early registration purposes, such travel and attendance 
subject to review by the CITY.  The CITY agrees to reimburse the SERVICE 
PROVIDER for the reasonable costs of lodging, travel expenses and event cost 
for such events up to a maximum of $5,000.00 per race year upon presentation of 
receipts and other supporting documentation. 

 
4. Reports and Inspections. 
 

4.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may 
require, shall furnish to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data, and 
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this 
Agreement.   

 
4.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time upon reasonable notice during 

normal business hours and as often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem 
necessary, make available for examination all of its records and data with respect 
to all matters covered, directly or indirectly, by this Agreement and shall permit 
the CITY or its designated authorized representative to audit and inspect other 
data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement.  The CITY shall receive a 
copy of all audit reports made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE 
PROVIDER'S activities.  The CITY may, at its discretion, conduct an audit at its 
expense, using its own or outside auditors, of the SERVICE PROVIDER'S 
activities that relate, directly or indirectly, to this Agreement. 

 
5. Independent Contractor Relationship. 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 2 
146



 
5.1 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDER/CITY relationship 

will be created by this Agreement.  The CITY is interested primarily in the results 
to be achieved; subject to paragraphs herein, the implementation of services will 
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER.  No agent, employee, 
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an 
employee, agent, servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose, and the 
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the  

 CITY provides for its employees.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and 
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, 
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
5.2 In the performance of the services herein contemplated, the SERVICE 

PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct 
the performance of the details of the work, however, the results of the work 
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to 
the CITY'S general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory 
completion thereof. 

 
6. Service Provider Employees/agents. 
 

The CITY may at its sole discretion request that the SERVICE PROVIDER remove an 
employee(s), agent(s) or servant(s) from employment on this Project.  The CITY will 
provide justification for the request and SERVICE PROVIDER may not unreasonably 
deny the request. The SERVICE PROVIDER may, however, employ that (those) 
individual(s) on other non-CITY related projects. 
 

7. Hold Harmless/Indemnification. 
 

7.1 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend, indemnify and hold the CITY, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
the acts, errors or omissions of the SERVICE PROVIDER in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the 
City. 

 
7.2 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement, the SERVICE 

PROVIDER waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington 
State Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW.  The parties expressly agree that 
this waiver of workers' compensation immunity has been negotiated.   

 
7.3 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement 

except as expressly provided herein. 
 

8. Insurance. 
 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 3 
147



The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
8.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of 

the types described below: 
a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 

leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual 
liability coverage. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance: N/A  
 
c. Workers' Compensation coverage: N/A 
 
d. Professional Liability Insurance: N/A  
 

8.2 Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the 
following insurance limits: 

 
a. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of One Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($100,000) per occurrence and Three Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($300,000) general aggregate per accident. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance: N/A   
 
c. Professional Liability insurance:  N/A 
 

8.3 Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed 
to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability insurance: 

 
a. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
b. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance shall be endorsed to state that 

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the City. 

 
8.4 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 4 
148



 
8.5 Verification of Coverage.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with 

original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of 
the work. 

 
9. Treatment of Assets. 
 

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the 
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents, if any, prepared 
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

10. Compliance with Laws. 
 

10.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws and ordinances, including 
regulations for licensing, certification and operation of facilities, programs and 
accreditation, and licensing of individuals, and any other standards or criteria as 
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services. 

 
10.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and 

occupation (B&O) taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement. 
 

11. Nondiscrimination. 
 

11.1 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer. 
 
11.2 Nondiscrimination in Employment.  In the performance of this Agreement, the 

SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or the use of a trained 
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability; provided that the 
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability, or the use 
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, shall not 
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular 
worker involved.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment without 
discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained 
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation, and programs for training including apprenticeships.  The 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 5 
149



SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as 
may be required to ensure full compliance with local, state and federal laws 
prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
11.3 Nondiscrimination in Services.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate 

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on 
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence 
of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or 
service animal by a person with a disability. 

 
11.4 If any assignment and/or subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY, said 

assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against 
discrimination.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be 
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately 
preceding paragraphs herein. 

 
12. Assignment/subcontracting. 
 

12.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this 
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the 
CITY, and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any 
proposed assignment.  The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any 
such assignment. 

 
12.2 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this 

Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local, 
state and/or federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines. 

 
12.3 Any technical/professional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement, must 

have express advance approval by the CITY. 
 

13. Changes. 
 

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided 
hereunder, however, no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding 
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties.  
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement. 
 

14. Maintenance and Inspection of Records. 
 

14.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books, records and documents, which 
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures 
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 6 
150



pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject at all reasonable times 
to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized representative, the 
State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this 
Agreement. 

 
14.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books, records, documents and other 

material relevant to this Agreement, for six (6) years after its expiration.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access 
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said 
period. 

 
15. Other Provisions. 
 

The following additional terms shall apply:  It is agreed between the parties that pursuant 
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded, the parties shall 
negotiate an appropriate amendment.  If after thirty (30) days of negotiation, agreement 
cannot be reached, the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty (60) 
days thereafter. 
 

16. Termination. 
 

16.1 Termination for Convenience.  The CITY may terminate this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, at any time, by giving at least thirty (30) days' written notice to 
the SERVICE PROVIDER.  Upon such termination for convenience, the City 
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this 
Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
16.2 Termination for Cause.  If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the 

manner called for in this Agreement, or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to 
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such 
noncompliance within five (5) days' written notice thereof, the CITY may 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a 
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in 
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will 
only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of 
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
17. Notice. 
 

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses 
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement. 
 

18. Attorneys Fees and Costs. 
 

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a 
dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 7 
151



this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party, in 
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled, reasonable attorney's fees 
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding. 
 

19. Jurisdiction and Venue. 
 

19.1 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and 
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that 
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
interpretation and performance. 

 
19.2 Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of 

this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only 
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County, Washington. 

 
20. Severability. 
 

20.1 If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of the United States to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
20.2 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory 

provision of the State of Washington, said provision that may conflict therewith 
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 
therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions. 

 
21. Entire Agreement. 
 

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and 
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  Further, 
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material 
breach of contract and be cause for termination.  Both parties recognize time is of the 
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement.  It is also agreed by the 
parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement 
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first hereinabove written. 
 
CITY:       SERVICE PROVIDER: 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR    ELKS LODGE NO. 2362 
865 SE Barrington Drive    155 NE Ernst Street 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277    Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 8 
152



 
              
Scott Dudley, Mayor     John Vega, Exalted Ruler 
 
Attest: 
 
        
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 9 
153



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

. 
2015-16 WHIDBEY ISLAND MARATHON 

Scope of Work for Race Director 
 

1.         General Organizational Coordination 
 

Race Director shall provide general coordination between all Whidbey Island Marathon 
2015-16 ("Marathon") related parties and individuals to assure proper            
communication, task completion and contract provision adherence for race event     
preparation and performance.  Those known parties and individuals shall include the      
Race Contractor, City of Oak Harbor Departments (Administration, Mayor, Police, Fire 
and Public Works), Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce, local media, expo exhibitors, 
race sponsors, race volunteers, the Oak Harbor School District, Whidbey SeaTac Shuttle, 
and Coupeville School District No. 204. The above listing is not to be considered 
exclusive.  The Race Director will be responsible for organizing and chairing task 
meetings with the City, Race Contractor and Race Director. 
 
 Maintain a running accounting of known revenue and expenditures and provide bi-

monthly report to the City. 
 

2. Sponsorship. 
 
Race Director shall make all reasonable efforts to secure relevant cash sponsors for the 
2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon event.  The minimum direct cash sponsorship goal for 
each year is $10,000.  Race Director agrees to work closely with the City of Oak Harbor 
to recommend, coordinate and complete the necessary steps to ensure that the sponsor 
focused efforts are strategically done and not duplicated.  Race Director will leverage the 
working relationship it has with past sponsors to invite them to become sponsors of the 
2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon event.  

 
3. Coordination of Promotion and Marketing Tasks 

 
            Race Director shall develop an overall marketing and promotion plan to ensure 
 continued race participation levels for the Whidbey Island Marathon.  This task shall 
 include the development of a marketing, promotion and distribution plan. This plan can 
 include the preparation of print ads, posters, rack cards, electronic media, awards, maps, 
 banners, stuffers, campaigns, brochures and entry forms.  Race Director shall consult 
 with the City regarding public announcements, news releases and Internet advertising.  
 Race Director will coordinate the adequate distribution of marketing and promotion  
 materials to a pre-approved list of distribution points including other races.  Race 
 Director will assist with the execution of any and all promotional programs as agreed 
 upon with the City.    Those specific tasks for coordination of promotion and marketing 
 tasks are as follows: 
 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 10 
154



• Provide any marketing-focused coordination required with the City of Oak Harbor 
and any other race partners or sponsors to ensure that a clean and consistent 
marketing message gets communicated to the targeted demographic of the 2015-16 
Whidbey Island Marathons.  

• Review and coordinate the distribution of the 2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon 
event promotion materials to health focused businesses and points of registrant 
contact located in Washington to ensure that these items are well distributed.  

• Review and coordinate the distribution of the 2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon 
promotion materials to regional health and fitness locations on the west coast from 
California north through Canada. 

• Secure the distribution of Whidbey Island Marathon promotion materials to 
established half and full marathon events throughout the United States in the months 
leading up to the marathon through running organization memberships. 

• Race Director will mount an email marketing campaign and work closely with the 
City of Oak Harbor to make sure that the content within the emails positively 
communicates the interests of Oak Harbor as well as the 2015-16 Whidbey Island 
Marathon event.  

• If requested, Race Director will secure and work closely with any outsourced 
marketing or graphics design agency to ensure that any and all relevant marathon 
related information is included within the marketing materials created. 

• Assist with the development of display materials for the Whidbey Island Marathon 
booth for the Seattle Marathon Expo and other marathon expos as requested by and 
subject to approval by the City.   

• Race Director shall work with the City website administrator to assure consistency 
and accuracy of marketing and promotion themes. 

 
4. Expo Coordination 
 

Race Director shall coordinate with Race Contractor and the Oak Harbor School 
 District, to organize and conduct the Marathon Expo.  Such tasks shall include             
 securing the expo site, assistance with set up and vendor booth layout coordination, the 
 rental of all necessary equipment, coordination between expo vendors, coordinating    
 expo volunteers and coordinating the preparation and disbursement of “goody bags”.        
Race Director shall work with Race Contractor to ensure a well-organized packet pickup 
for the participants and volunteers.   Those specific tasks for Expo coordination are as 
follows: 

 
• Review the selected expo site and create a strategic expo layout that best suits the 

goals and size of the 2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon event.  
• Recruit and secure an adequate volume of Expo exhibitors to support the goals 

and size of the 2015-16 Whidbey Island Marathon event.  
• Provide all the exhibitor contract documents needed for the securing of the 

exhibitors.   
• The coordination and continual contact with any equipment rental companies 

required for creating a professionally designed Expo. Such equipment includes 
the rental of pipe & drapes, tables, chairs, podiums, stages, etc. 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 11 
155



• The management of the participant goodie bag giveaways, including the 
contacting and securing of the bags, items to go in the bags and volunteers to stuff 
them.  

• Coordination of transportation of goodie bags to the event expo site.     
• The responsibility for the physical set up of the event expo site. 
• Coordinate with the City and volunteers as needed to perform late registration, t-

shirt and bib distribution and disseminate aid as needed for providing 
troubleshooting and general race information. 

• Coordinate and procure all volunteers for registration/health and fitness expo.  
• Responsible for volunteer needs, concerns and/or general well being to assure all 

volunteers receive required and adequate care, recognition, t-shirts and other 
amenities during their time with the Expo event. 

• Ensure all volunteers complete and submit City volunteer agreement forms. 
• Maintain a volunteer database and keep everyone informed of changes or updates. 
• The management of all the on-site activities during the hours of operation for the 

Expo. This includes the management of any onsite volunteers, the coordination 
with any onsite exhibitors or sponsors, the coordination with the facility where the 
Expo takes place and all the registration and packet pickup activities.  

• The creation and management of the Expo schedule, including any onsite guest 
speakers, or special exhibitor giveaways. 

• The creation and management of the day-of-race program script ensuring that all 
the pertinent race related information gets communicated to the Expo attendees 
and race participants.  

• The management of the interaction with the event timing company to ensure that 
the race registration and packet pickup operates smoothly.  

• The management of the clean-up of the Expo site ensuring that the Expo site is 
returned to its original condition.  

 
5. Race Course Coordination 
 
 Race Director shall provide coordination with the Race Contractor and City to assure  
 all race course tasks are in place and covered as well as conducting direct and specific 
 race course tasks.  Those specific tasks for race course coordination are as follows: 
 

• Recruit and coordinate all necessary volunteer assistance and training of water/aid 
stations. 

• Recruit and coordinate all necessary volunteer assistance and training of course 
monitors and certified flaggers.  

• Recruit and coordinate necessary law enforcement assistance. 
• Recruit and coordinate all necessary volunteers for the race start(s) which 

includes set up and tear down. 
• Coordinate overall water/aide station supplies and distribution materials 

(emergency kits, banners, gloves, anti-friction cream, etc.) that are not part of the 
Race Contractor duties. 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 12 
156



• Recruit and coordinate ham radio operators and motorcycle volunteers for the 
race course. 

• Coordinate and organize the gear check at the race starts and finish. 
• Coordinate the procurement and placement of porta-potties throughout the race 

course, starts and finishes of Whidbey Island Marathon event. 
• Delegate appropriately race day activities to insure a smoothly run event effective 

communication between between all parties. 
• Assist the City with the coordination of providing sound systems as needed, 

decorative amenities, refreshments as prescribed, and banners at the starts and 
finishes. 

 
6. Start/Finish Event Coordination 
 
Race Director shall provide coordination with the Race Contractor and City to assure all 
Start/Finish Event tasks are in place and covered as well as conducting direct and specific 
Start/Finish Event tasks.  Those specific tasks for Start/Finish Event coordination are as follows: 
 

• Assist the City with the coordination of safe and efficient passenger shuttle service for 
marathon and half marathon race participants. 

• Coordinate and organize the scheduling of shuttle service to bring runners to the start of 
both races and to return runners from the finish area to designated areas throughout the 
City of Oak Harbor. 

• Coordinate and organize volunteers for the gear check, late t-shirt distribution and any 
remaining general information and assistance to race participants. 

• Coordinate and organize the procurement of race start amenities such as marathon start 
heaters, refreshments and decorations. 

• Procure, organize and coordinate food and refreshment distribution. 
• Procure, organize and coordinate awards ceremony, entertainment, food and activity 

tents, vendor set-up, sponsor promotions, all volunteer tasks to staff the start and finish 
events and an adequate number of porta-potties strategically placed and adequately 
stocked with associated supplies.  

• Coordinate with Race Contractor first aid station, race results, race finish line set-up, 
banners, awards stage set-up, and sound system. 

• Coordinate with City regarding parking, security, trash pick-up, recycling, shuttle 
information, medal distribution, event photographer, banners, balloons, and award 
ceremony.   

 
7. 5K Fun Run Coordination 
 
Race Director shall provide coordination with the Race Contractor and City to assure the 5K Fun 
Run is produced and conducted as a community wellness and overall fitness event. Those 
specific tasks for the 5K Fun Run coordination are as follows: 
 

• Coordinate the recruitment and training for any volunteers required to assist such as 
course monitors, finish line assistants, registration assistants, t-shirt assistants, water/aid 
station volunteers and set-up volunteers. 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 13 
157



• Coordinate with the City for trash collection, water/aid station set-up, registration/t-
shirt/bib distribution station set-up and vendor/sponsor banner set- up 

• Coordinate with Race Contractor for all amenities related to race course lay-out, 
start/finish line set-up, race bib distribution, finish results, sound system set-up. 

 
8. Post-Marathon Coordination 
 
Race Director will schedule and conduct a post-Marathon meeting to evaluate the results and 
organize the responses for use in future Marathons.  
 

Professional Services Agreement (Elks-Marathon, 2014) - 14 
158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND CRONIN FORESTRY 
 FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City 
of Oak Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and Cronin Forestry, a 
Washington Sole Proprietor ("Consultant"). 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
providing timber crews of the Sleeper Rd property as well as the NE 16th Ave. and Goldie Rd. 
properties and solicit the sale of lumber as described in Article II. The general terms and 
conditions of the relationship between the City and the Consultant are specified in this 
Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 
 
 ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
 III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, 
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City 
when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule.  
Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be 
addressed as follows: 
 
  Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

 
1 

 
171



 III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all 
documents produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and 
upon completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 
 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 
Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the 
Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shall become 
the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under 
this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 
 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 
or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement 
without the written authorization of Consultant. 
 
 III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on August 7, 2014 and 
shall terminate at midnight, June 30, 2015.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement. 
 
 III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 
assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
 III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in 
the performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all claims that 
may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees 
while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a consequence of any 
negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any 
of the work or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the Consultant. 
 
 III.6 INDEMNITY.  Indemnification/Hold Harmless Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any 
and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City.  Should a court of 
competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the 
event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property 
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability, including the duty and cost to 
defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the 
purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The 
provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

2 
 

172



 
 III.7 INSURANCE. 
 
  a. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure, and 

maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work and services hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors.  The Consultant shall, before commencing 
work under this agreement, file with the City certificates of insurance coverage and the 
policy endorsement to be kept in force continuously during this Agreement, in a form 
acceptable to the City.  Said certificates and policy endorsement shall name the City, its 
officers, elected officials, agents and/or employees as an additional named insured with 
respect to all coverages except professional liability insurance and workers’ 
compensation.  The minimum insurance requirements shall be as follows: 

 
   (1) Comprehensive General Liability.  $500,000 combined single limit 

per occurrence for bodily injury personal injury and property damage;  
$1,000,000  general aggregate. 

 
   (2) Automobile Liability.  $300,000 combined single limit per 

accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation.  Workers' compensation limits as 

required by the Workers' Compensation Act of Washington. 
 
   (4) Consultant's Errors and Omissions Liability.  $500,000 per 

occurrence and as an annual aggregate. 
 
  b. Notice of Cancellation.  In the event that the Consultant receives notice 

(written, electronic or otherwise) that any of the above required insurance coverage is 
being cancelled and/or terminated, the Consultant shall immediately (within forty-eight 
(48) hours) provide written notification of such cancellation/termination to the City. 

 
  c. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance to be provided by Consultant shall 

be with a Bests rating of no less than A:VII, or if not rated by Bests, with minimum 
surpluses the equivalent of Bests' VII rating. 

 
  d. Verification of Coverage.  In signing this agreement, the Consultant is 

acknowledging and representing that required insurance is active and current. Further, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, the Consultant shall provide the City with proof 
of insurance upon request by the City. 

 
e. Insurance shall be Primary. The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall 

be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance 
pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

3 
 

173



 
f. No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by this 

Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance or otherwise limit the recourse to any remedy available at law 
or in equity. 

 
g. Claims-made Basis.  Unless approved by the City all insurance policies 

shall be written on an “Occurrence” policy as opposed to a “Claims-made” policy.  The 
City may require an extended reporting endorsement on any approved “Claims-made” 
policy. 

 
 III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 
OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity 
employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual 
orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with regard, but not 
limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services.  The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this 
nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a 
showing is made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and 
that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 
 
 III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair 
employment practices. 
 
 III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and 
that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this Agreement are fully qualified 
and properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be assigned.  This Agreement shall 
be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington.  Venue for any 
litigation commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in Snohomish County Superior Court. 
 
 III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the 

Consultant is an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status as 
an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services required under 
this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set 

4 
 

174



forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  The Consultant, as an independent 
contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the 
services required under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall make no claim of City 
employment nor shall claim any related employment benefits, social security, and/or 
retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, 
and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from 
income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a result of this 
Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other 

independent contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business 

license from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential 
conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 
 
 III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict 
confidence, and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 
 

III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall is responsible for all work performed by 
subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they 

directly hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, must 
be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the following 
Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants 
without the written approval of the City. 

5 
 

175



 
d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance 

coverages and limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide 
verification of said insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
 IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for 
services rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section.  In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this 
Agreement exceed $12,000.00 without the written agreement of the Consultant and the 
City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and services rendered 
and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the 
work.  In the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services 

performed in the previous calendar month.  At a minimum, invoices shall include (1) a 
summary of previous invoices; (2) current invoice amount; (3) total current monthly 
billing; (4) amount authorized under this agreement; and (5) total authorized amount still 
remaining under the agreement.  The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records 
and provide them to the Cities upon request. 

 
  c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before 

the 20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 
contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of 
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance 
with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 
 

IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall 
maintain all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All 
such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all 
reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and 
audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, 
accounts and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit.  The Consultant shall 
preserve and make available all such books of account and records for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under this Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any 
discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate 
clarification and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

6 
 

176



 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
 V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
 
 City of Oak Harbor 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

 
 
 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Cronin Forestry 
371 Hidden Trails Road 
Port Townsend, WA  98368 

  
 
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 
notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
 V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement 
in whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 
shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in 
accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 
 
 V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation 
and compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 
 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together 
with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by 
both parties. 
 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of 
this Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed 
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 

7 
 

177



inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

 V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party 
hereto of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not 
in default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of either 
party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this 
Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair 
meaning and shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of 
authorship.  This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall 
lie in the Superior Court of Washington for Snohomish County, Washington. 
 
 V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Agreement. 
 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  
The undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind 
the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 
 
 DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR CRONIN FORESTRY 
865 SE Barrington Dr.    371 Hidden Trails Rd. 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277    Port Townsend, WA  98368 
 
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
 Scott Dudley, Mayor     Mike Cronin, CF 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 

8 
 

178



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

9 
 

179



Cronin Forestry 
371 Hidden Trails Road 

Port Townsend, WA 98368 
360-385-5454 

cronin@broadstripe.net 
 

City of Oak Harbor Timber Harvest Proposal 
05/14/14 

 

Scope of Work 
 

Recon the two potential timber sale units to determine property boundaries  
and logging access….                                                                                               4  hours 
 
Cruise all merchantable timber on three parcels                                                       24 
 
Appraise total stumpage values for three parcels                                                       4 
 
Contact Island County DCD to determine extent of harvest under class 4 permit   2  
 
Prepare and present to City three harvest scenarios with projected revenue including: 
Sell all legally available timber (CC option) 
Sell partial cut of 50% of available timber 
Sell partial cut of 75% of available timber                                                              16 
 
Complete field layout for selected alternative                                                         20 
 
Class 4 general permit preparation for City and County                                         20 
 
Prepare timber sale contract                                                                                      8 
 
Receive Timber Sale bids and answer questions at auction date                              8  
 
Attend pre-work conference with sale purchaser rep                                                8 
 
Administer Timber Sale Contract                                                                            40 
Total estimated time:                                                                                              154 hours   
 At $50.00 hourly rate             $ 7,700.00 
Insurance                                      $ 932.00 
12.5 % for mileage and ferry tolls           $ 963.00 
         Total        $ 9,595.00 
         Tax      $   835.00 
        Grand Total  $10,430.00 

180

mailto:cronin@broadstripe.net


181





182



183



184



185



186



187



188





189


	Agenda for August 6, 2014 Regular Council Meeting
	Proclamation for Constitution Week
	C/A 4.a Special Workshop Minutes for July 1, 2014
	C/A 4.a Regular Meeting Minutes for July 1, 2014
	C/A 4.a Special Workshop Minutes for July 9, 2014
	C/A 4.a Workshop Meeting Minutes for July 23, 2014
	C/A 4.b Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	Voucher Listings

	C/A 4.c Surplus Authorization of Mowers
	C/A 4.d Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Appointment of Peter Franssen
	Biography of Peter Franssen

	C/A 4.e Referral of Change in the Use of Lodging Taxes to Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC)
	LTAC Proposed Schedule 2014

	C/A 4.f Department of Corrections Contract - Amendment Approval
	Department of Corrections Contract No. K9413 Interagency Agreement
	Amendment No. 1 of Contract No. K9413

	C/A 4.g Planning Commission Appointment of Clifford Howard
	Resume of Clifford Howard

	C/A 4.h Garden Name Adoption
	Oak Harbor Park Board Notes

	6.a Resolution 14-24 Employee Policy Manual Amendment - Faith Based Leave
	Resolution 14-24
	Exhibit A 

	6.b Waste Water Treatment Plant - Resolution 14-28: Clean Water Facility Site Selection
	Resolution 14-28

	6.c Local Agency Agreement for the Waterfront Trail Enhancement Project
	Resolution 14-30
	Local Agency Agreement
	Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus

	6.d Local Agency Agreement for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing Project
	Resolution 14-31
	Local Agency Agreement
	Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus

	6.e City of Oak Harbor & Teamsters Local 231 Settlement Agreement (Public Works)
	Resolution 14-32
	Exhibit A - Memoranda of Settlement
	Exhibit B - Appendix A Classifications
	Exhibit C - Appendix B Wages
	Exhibit D - Labor Agreement

	7.a Mangat Property - Intent to Annex
	Attachment 1 - Notice of Intent to Commence Annexation Proceedings
	Attachment 2 - Future Land Use Map
	Attachment 3 - City Sewer Map
	Attachment 4 - City Water Map
	Attachment 5 - Comprehensive Plan Annexation Policies

	7.b 2015-2016 Revenue Projections
	Revenue Projections

	7.c Water Use Efficiency Program Goals
	7.d Ordinance No. 1693: Park Code 6.12.080 Amendment 
	Draft Ordinance No. 1693

	9.a Whidbey Island Marathon Race Director Contract 
	Professional Services Agreement with Oak Harbor Elks Lodge #2362
	Elks Submittal in Response to Request for Qualifications

	9.b Professional Services Agreement - Timber Harvest Proposal
	Professional Services Agreement with Cronin Forestry
	Exhibit A - Scope of Work
	Certificate of Liability Insurance

	9.c Amendment No. 1 - Interlocal Agreement between Island County and City of Oak Harbor for Roadway Maintenance
	Amendment No. 1
	Interlocal Agreement Between Island County and The City of Oak Harbor for Roadway Maintenance

	9.d 2nd Quarter Financial Report




